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PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

Km. 29 National Road, Tunasan, Muntinlupa City 1773 Philippines
Tel. No.: (632) 850-7901 Fax No.: (632) 850-7928
Website : www.pepsiphilippines.com

June 7, 2012

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Corporation Finance Department

SEC Building, EDSA

Greenhills, Mandaluyong City 1554

Attention Ms. Justina F. Callangan
Acting Director

Dear Madam:

We reply to your letter dated May 18, 2012, which we received last May 29, 2012, regarding your
Office’s findings on the 2011 Annual Report (SEC Form 17-A) of Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc.
(hereinafter referred to as “the Company”).

SEC Comment No. 1 —Incomplete description of the business of registrant and its significant
subsidiaries regarding competition.

Response:
The additional information required were disclosed in the amended 2011 Annual Report.

SEC Comment No. 2 — Non-disclosure of estimated amount of spending for research and
development activities.

Response:

As disclosed in Item 2 (1) of the amended 2011 Annual Report, the research and development
costs amounted to £639,100 for the calendar year ended December 31, 2011, and 477,353
and #317,460 for the six months ended December 31, 2010 and fiscal year ended June 30,
2010, respectively. Considering the immateriality of the amount, we will no longer amend and
disclose this information in our 2011 financial statements. However, we will include this
disclosure in our prospective financial statements.

SEC Comment No. 3 — Incomplete disclosure of the condition of the Company’s properties.

Response:
The Company’s properties are in “good” condition. We have disclosed this fact and further
details as requiredin Item 2 (Properties) of the amended 2011 Annual Report.




S

SEC Comment No. 4 — Non-disclosure of the information regarding the properties not owned
by the Company, mortgage or lien on the property and the limitations on ownership or usage
over the same.

Response:

We believe that we have sufficiently disclosed the foregoing information in the 2011 financial
statements. Please note that, in Item 2 (Properties) of the 2011 Annual Report, references
were made to Notes 9 and 11 of the 2011 financial statements.

SEC Comment No. 5 — Incomplete disclosure on lease payments on leased properties.

Response:

Lease payments pertaining to these leased properties amounted to £181 million for the year
ended December 31, 2011, 277 million for the six-month period from July 1 to December 31,
2010, £107 million for the year ended June 30, 2010. We have disclosed this fact in ltem 2
(Properties) of the amended 2011 Annual Report.

SEC Comment No. 6 — Non-disclosure of the executive compensation of CEO and Top 4 highest
paid executive officers) for 2012 based on the prescribed format.

Response:
Please refer to Item 11 of the amended 2011 Annual Reportfor the disclosure of the estimated
2012 executive compensation information based on the required format.

SEC Comment No. 7 — Non-compliance with the required disclosure of reports on SEC Form 17-
(&

Response:

We have revised Part V of the 2011 Annual Report to include a disclosure of the reports on SEC
Form 17-C, as amended, which were filed during the last six (6) month period covered by this
Report.

We trust that we have sufficiently addressed your concerns.

Very truly yours,

PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

By:

AKASH SHAH
Senior Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

AMENDED SEC FORM 17-A
AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141
OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES

For the calendar year ended31 December 2011

"8EC Identiﬁcatidn Number00001609683. BIR Tax ldentification No.006-163-541

Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter: PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

Province, Country or other jurisdiction of 6. Industry Classification Code:
incorporation or organization: Philtppines . (SEC Use Oniy)

Address of principal office; Km. 29 Natloﬁal Road, Tunasan, Muntinlupa City Postal Code: 1773
Is;suer's telephone number, including area code: (632) 850-7901 to 20

Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since Iasl-report; not applicable
Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8§ and 12 of the 3RC, or Sec. 4 and 8 of the RGA

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Qutstanding and Amount of Debt QOutstanding
- as of June 30, 2008
Common Shares of Stock ‘ 3,693,772,279

Are any or all of these securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes [x] Nof |

If yés, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities listed tharein:
Philippine Stock Exchange - Common Shares of Stock

Check whether the issue;

(8) has filed ali reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRG Rule 17.1 thereunder
ar Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereundsar, and Sections 26 and 141 of The
Carporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such shorter
period that the registrant was required to file such reports);

Yes [x] Ne[ ]

- (b) The Registrant has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.

Yes [x] No[ ]

o]



13. State the aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant. The
aggregaie market value shall be computed by reference to the price at which the stock was sold, or
the average bid and asked prices. of such stock, as of a specified date within sixty (60) days prior to
the date of filing. If a determination as to whether a particular person or entity is an affiliate cannot ba
made without involving unreasonable affort and expense, the aggregate market valua of the common

~ stock held by non-affiliates may be calculated on the basis of assumptions reasonable under the
circumstances, provided the assumptions are set forth in this Form. ‘ :

Aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant—R3,201 million as of
February 29, 2012. ‘ ‘
. DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENGE
14. The following documahts are incorporated in this report:
(@)~ December 31, 2011Audited Financial Statemants attached as Exhibit | hereof:
{b) Statement of Management Responsibility attached as Exhibit 11 hereof, and
(c) Amendments to the Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws attached as Exhibit 11l hereof.
PART | - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATIDN
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
(1} Business Davelopment
8. Form and Date of Organization
The Company was registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission on March 8,
1989, primarily {o engage in manufacturing, sales and distribution of carbonated soft-drinks and non-
carbonated beverages, and confectionery products to retail, wholesale, restaurants and par trades.
The registered office address and principal place of business of the Company is Km. 29, National
Road, Tunasan, Muntinlupa City. - ‘
b. Bankruptey, Receivership or Similar Proceedings

The Company is not involved in any bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceedings.

¢. Maierial Reclassification, Merger, Consolidation or Purchaze or Sale of a Significant Armount of
Assets (not ordinary) over the past three years :

The Company has not made any material reclagsifications nor entered into @ merger, consolidation ar
purchase or sale of significant amount of assets not in the ordinary course of business in the past
three years,



(2) Buslness of Issue

a  Principal products

The Company is a licensed bottler of PepsiCo, Inc. (“"PepsiCo") and Pepsi Lipton International Limited
(“Pepsi Lipton®) in the Philippines. It manufactures a range of carbonated soff drinks (CSD) and non-
carbonated beverages (NCB) that includes well-known brands Pepsi-Cola, 7Up, Mountain Dew,
Mirinda, Mug, Gatorade, Tropicana/Twister, Lipton, Sting and Propel.

Calendar For the six Fiscal

Year months Year

ended ended ended
Net Sales Pec 31, 2011 } Dec 31, 2010 | June 30, 2010
Carbonated soft drinks £11,933 B5,937 B11,469
Non-carbonated beverages - 5,196 2,357 4,660
Total R217 129 B3 204 R18 129
Segment result* o
Carhonated soft drinks £ 2 863 # 1,319 R?2 994
Non-carbonated beverages 1,118 524 1,217
Total B3 679 B1,843 24 211

Segmant result Is the difference between net sales and segment expenses, Segment expenses are allocated based on
the percentage of sach reportable segiment's ret sales over the total net sales.

b, Foreign sales

Foreign sales represant 0.08% .of total net sales for the calendar year ended December 31, 2011, .
and0.23%and 0.28% for the six months ended December 31, 2010 and fiscal year ended June 30,
2010, respectively. ‘ .

c. Distribution methods bf the products

The Company’s sales volumes depend on the reach of its distribution netwark. It increases the reach
of distribution system by adding routes and increasing penetration by adding outlets on existing
routes that currently do not stock its products. It relies on a number of channels to reach retail
outlets, including direct sales, distributors and wholesalars, ' ‘

The backbone of the distribution system is what is referred to as “Enfrepreneurial Distribution
System,” which consists of independent contractors who service one or more sales “routes,” usuaity
by truck, selling directly to retail outlets and collecting empty returnable bottles (RGBs).

It also employs its own sales force, which principally sells to what is referred to as the “modemn trade”
channel, consisting largely of supemmarkets, rastaurants and convenisnca store chains, Most of these
sales are credit sales that are fulfilled by third party distributors. In addition, it sells products to third
party wholesalers and distributors, which sell them {o retail outlets. :

An important aspect of the distribution systemn is the infrastructure-intensive process of salling and
delivering RGB products to thousands of smali retailers, including sari-sari stores and carinderias.
The efforis to increase the reach of our distribution’ network require significant investments in
distribution infrastructure such-as additional trucks, refrigeration equipment, warehouse space and
larger “float” of glass bottles and plastic shells, as well as higher costs for additional sales and
distribution staff. ‘ : L



d. Publicly-announced new product
The Company has no publicly-announced new products that are in the planning or prototype stage.
e. Competition

The Company competes in the ready-to-drink, non-alcoholic beverage market across the Philippines.
The market is highly competitive and competition varies by product category. The Company believes
that_the major competitive factors include advertising and marketing programs that create brand
awareness, pack/price promotions, new product development, distribution and availability, packaging
and customer goodwill. The Company faces competition generally from beth [oeal and multi-national
companies across the Company’s nationwide operations.

Competitors in_the CSD market are The Coca-Cola Company and Asiawide Refreshments
Corporation, which represent about 3/4 of the CSD market. The substantial investment in multiple
plants, distribution infrastructure and systems and the float of RGBs and plastic shells required to

© pperate a nationwide beverage business using RGBs represent a significant barrier to potential
competitors in widening thelr reach.

The market for NCB (inciuding energy drinks) is more fragmented. Major competitors in this market
are The Coca-Cola Company, Asia_Brewery Incorporated, Del Monte Pacific_Limited, Universal
Robina Corparation, Zesto Corporation. among others, which represent approximately3/4of the NCB
market. In recent years, the market has been relatively fluid, with frequent product launches and
shifting consumer preferences, These trends are expected to continue.

Industry-wide cormpetition intensified wit ressive price-cutting, marketing campaigns, and trade
and consumer promotions. The Comparny believes that it can effectively compete by rmaximizing its
360-degree marketing presence,_maintaining its competitive price structures, and expanding the
ranae and reach of the Company's portfolio, For the vears to come, the Compan i ntinue 1o
expand its beverage offerings leveraging our wide manufacturing platform and exiensive distribution
reach to meet consumer demands, - ‘

Moreover, the Company invested aggressively. positioning the business for long-lerm growth while
ensunna financial flexibility. to batile current challenges, The Company expanded and upgraded
manufacturing facilities in differént_plants to provide multiple product capabilities. maximize cost
savings, improve product quality, and increase operating efficiencieg

f  Sources and availability of raw materials

Over half of total costs comprise purchases of raw materials. Largest purchases are sugar and
beverage concenirates. The Company purchases sugar requirements domestically because of

- import restrictions imposed by the Philippine government. It purchases beverage concentrates from
PepsiCo and Pepsi Lipton at prices that are fixed as a percentage of the wholesale prices charged for
the finished products, subject to a price floor in U.S. dollars.

Another substantial cost is packaging. The major components of this expense are purchases of PET
pre-forms, which are converted into PET bottles at the plants, non-reusable glass bottles, aluminum
cans and closures. It also makes regular purchases of RGBs to maintain float at appropriate leveals.
Purchases of each of these materials are from suppliers based in the Philippines and in other parts of
Asia, usually under short term, fixed price contracts.

g. Customers

The Company has a broad customer base nationwide. lts customers include supermarkets,
convenience stores, bars, sari-sari stores and carinderias.



h. Transactions with and/or Dependencé on Related Parties
Please refer to Itemn 130of this report.
i. Patents, trademarks, copyrights, licenses, franchises, concessions, and royalty agreements’

The Company does not own any intellectual property that is material to the business. Under the
Exclusive ‘Bottling Agreements, the Company is authorized fo use brands and tha associated
trademarks owned by FepsiCo and, in the case of the Lipton brand and trademarks, Unilever N.V.
Trademark licenses are registered with the Philippine Intellectual Property Office. Cerlificates of
Registration filed after January 1998 are effective for a petiod of 10 years from the registration daie
unless sooner cancelled, while those filed before January 1998 are effective for 20 years from the

registration date. The table below summarizes most of the current Gertificates of Registration.

Filing Date

Expiration

Pepsi Max

| February 7, 1994

June 23, 2020

1996 Pepsi Logo in Color

.| August 26, 1997

April 16, 2021

PCPPI — Pepsi Cola Products
Philippines, Inc. and Logo

August 26, 2008

September 17, 2019

Pepsi October 18, 2004 February 19, 2017
Mirinda January 23, 1986 May 10, 2018
Mountain Dew Jung 5, 2000 January 18, 2014
Mountain Dew Logo dJune 5, 2000 October 30, 2014

Diet 7Up Logo in Golor

September 22, 2003

August 28, 2015

fUp

February 26, 2007

November 5, 2017

Gatorade

November 27, 1082

June 28, 2015

Gatorade and lightning bolt design

February 9, 2004

August 28, 2015

Propel

August 23, 2002

Jdanuary 17, 2015

Tropicana Twister

December &, 1990

August 18, 2013

Tropicana December 14, 1982 January 14, 2020
Sting March 10, 2006 June 18, 2017
Lipton March 28, 2003 | June 8, 2016
Lipton Splash design Decamber 18, 2003 May 28, 2017

Lipton ice Tea Logo in Color

Qciober 8, 2007

October 8, 2017

Premier® '

| December 18, 19692

March 24, 2014

* trademark awned by the Company

The Company produces its products under licenses from PepsiCo and Pepsi Lipton and depands
upon them to provide concentrates and access to new products. Thus, if the Exclusive Bottling
Agreements are suspended, terminated or not renewad for any reason, it woultd have a rmaterial
adverse effect on the business and financial results. '

Refer to Item 13 of this report for details on transactions with PepsiCo and Pepsi Lipton.

Government approvals of principal products

As a producer of beverages for human consumption, the Company is subject to the regulation by the
Food and Drugs Administration (FDA) of the Philippines, which is the pelicy formulation and
monitoring arm of the Department of Health of the Philippines on matters pertaining to food and the
formulation of rules, regulations, standards and minimum guidelines on the safety and quality of food
and food products as well as the branding and labeling requirements for these products.



It is the Gompany's policy to register all locally-produced products for local market distribution. Each
of the plants has a valid and current License to Operate as a'Food Manufacturer of Nan-Aleohaolic
Beverages from FDA. = These licenses are renewed annually in accordance with applicable
regulations. Any finding and gaps found during the regulatory audit and inspection are thoroughly
discussed with FDA inspectors and compliance commitments are re-issued. There are no pending
findings of gaps that are material or that may materially affect the operation of each plant or all the
planis as a whole. .

The Company is also registered' as a Distributor and Exporter of finished products. I has been
recognized by FDA as a Good Manufacturing Practice Certified Plant,

Effect of existing or prebable governmental regulations on the business

The Company's production facilites are subject to environmental regulation under a variety of
netional and local laws and regulations, which, in particular, control the emissions of air pollutants,
water, and noise, It is regulated by two major government agencies, namely, the Department of
Environment and Naturaf Resources (DENR) and the Laguna Lake Development Authority (LLDA).

The Company is compliant with environmental laws and regulations, such as the wastewater -
treatment plants as required by the Department of Environment and Natural Resources and Laguna
Lake Development Authority. ‘

While the foregoing agencies actively monitor the Company's compliance with environmental
- regulations as well as investigate complaints brought by the public, it is required fo police its own
compliance and prevent any incident that could expose the Company to fines, civil or even criminal
sanclions, considerable - capital and other costs and expenge for refurbishing or .upgrading
environmental compliance system and resources, third party liability such as clean-ups, injury to
communities and individuals, including, loss of life,

Research and development

The research and development costs amounted to R839,100 for the caléndar year ended December
31, 2011, and R477,353 andR317 460 for the six months ended December 31, 2010 and fiscal year
ended June 30, 2010, respectively. . -

. Costs and effects of compliance with environmental laws

Compiiance with all applicable environmental laws and regulations, such as the Environmental Impact
Statement System, the Pollution Control Law, the Laguna Lake Development Authotlty Act of 1968,
the Clean Air Act, and the Solid Waste Management Act has not had, and in the Company’s opinion,
i& not expected to have a material effect on the capital expenditures, earnings or competitive position.
Annually, it invests about £30 milion In wastewater treatment and air poliution abatement,
respectively, in its facilities. - ‘

Employaes

As of December 31, 2011, the Company employed approximately 2,682 people. In addition, it
generally deploys around 2,000casual employees working in the non-core operations of the business.
Department of Labor and Employment (DOLE) accredited third party manpower and services supply
the temporary manpower needs of the company. The number of casual employees varies seasonally,

with generally higher numbers during peak months of March through June. As of December 31, 2011,
the Company had 1,948 casyal empioyees. '

Ail of the regular and_ permanent production employees at the bottling ‘plants and sales offices are
represented by a upion. - The Company is a party to 13 coliective bargaining agreements, with
. separate agreaments for the salgs and the non-safes forces in some business units. The collective



bargaining agreements contain economic and non-economic provisions (such as salary incree_lse and
performance incentive, sale commission, laundry allowance, per diem, bereavement assistance,
union leave, calamity loan, and assistance to employees’ cooperative), which generally has a contract
period of three years and remain binding on the successors-in-interest of the parties, while the
representation aspect is valid for five years,

The Company believes that the relatidnship with both unionized and non-unionized employees is
healthy. It has not experienced any work stoppages due fo industrial disputes since 1999,

Significant emphasis is ptaced on training of personnel to increase their skill levels, ensure consistent
application of procedures and to instill an appreciation of corporate values. It operates "Pepsi
University,” a full-time training facility consisting of four classrooms for this purpose. It has adopted a
compensation policy which it believes to be competitive with industry standards in the Philippines.
Sataries and benefits are reviewed periodically and improved to retain current employees and attract
new employees. Performance is reviewed annually and employees are rewarded based on the
attainment of pre-defined objectives. :

The Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering substantiaily afl
of its regular and full time employees. The Company has a Retirement Committee that sets the
policies for the plan and has appointed two Philippine banks as trustees to manage the retirement
fund pursuant to the plan.  Annual cost is determined using the projected unit credit method.

M'ajor Risks

Sales and profitability are affected by the overall performance of the Philippine ecanomy, the natural
seasonaiity of sales, the competitive environment of the bevarage market in the Philippines, as well
as changes in cost structures, among other factors.

Sales volume are also affected by the weather, generally being higher in the hot, dry months from
March through Juhe and lower during the wetter monsoon months of July through October. In
addition, the Philippines is exposed to risk of typhoons during the monsoon period. Typhoons usually
result in substantially reduced sales in the affected area, and have, in the past, intermipted production
at the plants in affected areas. While these factors lead to a natural saasonality in sales,
unseasonable weather could also significantly affect sales and profitability compared to previous
comparable periods. Sales during the Christmas/New Year holiday period in late December tend to
be higher as well. '

The CSD and NCB markets are both highly competitive. The actions of competitors as well as the
- Company's ewn continuous efforts on pricing, marketing, promotions, and new product development

affect sales. Some of the smaller competitors have lower cost bases than the Corporation and price
their products lower than ours. Thus, in addition to the cost of producing and distributing our
beverages, sales prices are greatly affected by the availability and price of competing brands in the
market. ‘

All of the Company's sales are denominated in Philippine pesos. However, some of the significant
costs, such as purchases of packaging materials, are denominated in United States doltars. Some of
the other costs, which are incurred in Philippine pesos, can also be affected by fluctuations in the
éxchange rate between the Philippine peso and United States dollars and Euro. In respect of
monetary assets and liabilities held in cumrencies other than the Philippine peso, the Gompany
-ensures that its exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying foreign currencies at spot rates

where necessary to address shori-term imbalances. The Cormpany considered the exposure to
foreign currency risk to be insignificant. .

The b_usiness requires a significant supply of raw materials and energy. The cost and supply of theea
Materals couid be adversely affected by changes in the world market prices on sugar, crude oil,
aluminum, tin, PET resins, among others, Although direct purchases of fuel are relatively small as a



proportion of total costs, the Company is exposed to fluctuations in the price of oll through the
dependence on freight and delivery services. Changes in materials prices generally affect the
competitors as well, ‘ T :

Margins differ between beverage products and package types and sizes. Exeluding packaging,
praduction costs are similar across the range of carbonated beverages, byt vary with non-carbonated
beverages. Packaging costs vary, with RGBs being less expensive than PET, aluminurn cans or non-
returnable glass. The incremental cost of producing larger-sized serves in the same package type is
proportionately lower than the increased volume, creating opportunities to achieve higher margins
where customers perceive value in-terms of volume. g

As a result of the factors discussed above, the margins the Company earns on the products ¢an be
substantially different, and the margins can change in both absolute and relative terms from period to
period. While the Company attempts to adjust its product and package mix to maximize profitability,
changes in consumer demand and the competitive landscape can have a significant impact on mix
and therefore profitability.

-The Company is also subject to credit risk, liquidity risk and varieus market risks, including risks from
changes in commodity prices, interest rates and currency exchange rates (refer to Notes 4 and 21 of
the Decernber 31, 2011 Audited Financial Statements for discussion on Financial Risk Management).

The Campany is not aware of any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that
is material to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation. To the Company’s
knowledge, there are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangement, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationship of the Gompany with unconsolidated entities or other
persons created during the reporting period.

[TEM 2, PROPERTIES | ‘

As a foreign-owned company, the Corhpany is not permitted to own land in the Philippines and has no
intention to acguire real estate property. Hence, it leases the land on which the botlling plants,
warehouses and sales offices are located. ‘

The Company leases certain parcels of land where its bottling plants and warehouses are located from
third parties and Nadeco Realty Corporation (NRC) for a period of ane {0 25 years and are renewable for
another one to 26 years (refer to Note 250f the December 31, 2011 Audited Financial Staternents for

further information on the leases) Lease pavments pertaining to these leased properties amounted to
£181 million for the year ended December 31, 2011,_R77 million for the six-month period from July 1 to

December 31, 2010, R107 miliiqn fr:a.r the year ended June 30, 2010,

The Company cwns all its bottling faciliies, which are locaied in M'untinluga Cigy, Resario, Pampanga,
Naga, Cebu, lloile, Bacolod. Tanauan, Davaoc, Cagayan de Oro and Zamboanga, and are all in good

condition. Other than the buildings and leasehold improvements, machinery and other equiprnent, and
furniture and fixtures disclosed in Note 9 to the December 31, 2011Audited Financial Statements, and the
investments in sharee of stocks disclosed in Note 7 to the December 31, 2011.Audited Financial
Statements, the Comparny does not hold significant properties. ' ‘

In 2010, a substantial portion of the Company’s property, plant and equipment _and certain parcels of land
gwned by NRC is mortaaged and placed in_trust under two mortgage trust indenturas o secure the
Company's outstanding notes payable in 2010.Refer to Notes & (Inventories), 8 (Bottles and Cases), 9
(Property, Plant and Equipment), and 11 (Notes Payable) to the December 31, 2011Audited Financial
Statements for details on mortgage, lien or encumbrances aver the properties of the Campany.




ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, the Company becomes a party to litigation in the ordinary course of jts businass, The
majority of the cases in which. the Company is a party are cases it files to recovar debts in relation to
unpaid receivables by.trade parners or in relation to cash or route shortages, private criminal
prosecutions that it brings (generally for low value offenses such as theft of product or distribution
equipment, fraud, and bouncing checks), labor cases for alieged illegal dismissal (which are usually
accompanied by demands for reinstatement in the Company without loss of seniority rights, and payment
of back wages), and consumer cases brought against the Company involving allegations of defective
products.

As a result of a promotion in 1892, civil cases were filed against the Company in which thousands of
individuals claimed to hold numbered bottle crowns that entitled them to a cash prize. The Philippine
Supreme. Court has consistently held in at least 7 final and executory decisions in the last 5 years that the
Company is not liable to pay the amounts ¢lairmed. In the most recent of these decisions, the Supreme
Court dismissed a similar claim, reiterating that it is bound by its pronouncement in a number of cases
involving this promotion. By virtue of the precedential effect of the decided cases, the Company expects
the rernaining cases to be dismissed in due course. : '

- The Company does not believe that the litigation in which the Company is currently involved or which is
presently pending or threatened is material, either individually or in the aggregate. The Company has not
* been involved in any bankruptey, receivership or other similar proceedings. '

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

The matters voted upon at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on May 27, 2011 included the election
of Directors. The following were re-elected as members of the Board of Directors for the ensuing year
(2011-2012): ‘ '

Hwang Chung
. Partha Chakrabarti
Inho Kim .
Jashyuk Lee
John L. Sigalos
Qasgim Khan
Yeon-Suk No
Rafael M. Alunan Il {Independent Director)
Oscar S, Reyes (Independent Director)

All of the above were incumbent Directors at the time of their re-election. The Company has complied

with the guidelines on the nomination and election of indepehdent directars set forth in Rule 38 of the
Amended Implementing Rules and Regulations of the Securities Regulation Code.
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PART Il - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR ISSUER’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATEDSTOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Market Information _ ‘
The common shares were listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE”) on February 1, 2008.The
high and low sales prices of such shares for 2011, 2010 and 2009are set out below.

Period High Low
July to Sept 2009 P46 B1,32
Ot to December 2009 P2 50 B2 00
Jan to March 2010 B2.70 P2 02
April to June 2010 P3.05 B2 45
July ta September 2010 82 65 £2.61
October to December 2010 B2 05 £2.50
Jan to March 2011 £2.569 B2 06
April to June 2011 B2 58 £2 21
July to Sept 2011 2222 £1.96
October to December 2011 R2 50 P2.10

The closing share price as of March 15, 2012 is £2.81

Stockholders :

The Company has approximately 639 holders of common shares as of February 29, 2012[with the PCD
Nominee Corporation (Filipino) and (Non-Filiplno) considered as two holders], based on the number of
accounts registered with the Stock Transfer Agent.

The following are the top 20 holders of common shares based on the report fumished by the Stock
Transfer Agent as of February 29, 2012,

: Number of Percentage of
NO. Name Shares Held Owners?tip
1 | LOTTE CHILSUNG BEVERAGE CO.LTD. 1,270,657,644 34.40%
2 | QUAKER GLOBAL INVESTMENTSB.V. 1,089,101,359 29,48%
3 | PCD NOMINEE CORP. (NON-FILIPINO) 717,762,983 19.43% |
4 | PCD NOMINEE CORP (FILIPINO) 568,242 686 15.41%
5 | ORION LAND INC. | 40,000,000 1.08%
6 | BORROMEO,JOSEPH MARTIN H. 450,000 0.01%
7 | LARS DALBY 424,000 0.01% |
8 | YAN, LUCIOW. 300,000 0.01%
9 | BLANCAVER, RENE B. . 265,000 0.01%
10 | MADARANG, WINEFREDA 0. 250,000 0.01%
11| LUGTI, VALERIANO A. 220,000 0.01% |
12 | DABAQ, LUIS G. 200,000 0.01%
13 | YU, FELIX S. 149,998 0.00%
14 | MERCHAN BERNARDO 140,000 0.00%
15 | CHEUNG WAI TAK 130,000 0.00%
16 | NARCISO, MA CELESTE S. 100,000 0.00%
17 | IGNACIO, JUANITO R, 100,000 0.00%
18 | PINEDA, MA. CORAZON V. 100,000 0.00%
19 | UMALI, JOSE 1. ' 100,000 0.00%
20 | SISON, NANCY B. 80,000 0.00%




Cash Dividends

The Board of Directors (BOD) approved several declarations of cash dividends amounting to 2369 million
in the six-months ended December 31, 2010, R554 milion in fiscal year 2010 and R36¢ million in fiseal
year 2000. Details of the declarations are as follows:

Payable to
‘ : Dividend Par Stockholders of ‘
Date of Declaration Share Record as of Date of Payment
September 30, 2009 0.15 October 15, 2009 - Qctobar 28, 2009
September 9, 2010 - 0.10 September 24, 2010 October 8, 2010

Dividend Policy ‘ ‘
The Company has a dividend policy to declare dividends to stockholders of record, which are paid from
the unrestricted retained earnings. Any future dividends it pays will be at the discretion of tha BOD after
taking into account the earnings, cash flow, financial position, capital and operating progress, and other
factors as the BOD may consider relevant.  Subject to the foregoing, the present policy is to pay cash
dividends up ta 50% of annual net income.

Cash dividends are subject to approval by the BOD without need for stockholders’ approval, Stock
dividends require the further approval of the stockholders representing no less than 2/3 of our outstanding
capital stock.

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities including Recent Issuance of Securities
Constituting an Exempt Transaction : '

There has been no recent sale of unregistered or exempt securities including recent issuance of
securities constituting an exermpt transaction.

PART Nl - FINANCGIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 6. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Calendar Year Ended December 31, 2011 versus Annualized Six-month Period Ended Decembar 31,
2010 ‘

In spite of the industry and macro challenges that came upon in 2011, gross sales revenue reached
P18.96 billion, increased by 1% versus annualized 2010. This performance was mainly due fo the
aggressive expansion of the use of returnable packaging format for PCPPI's non-carbonated beverages
across the country and the growth in the flavors line of the carbonated soft drinks business. This is in line
with PCPPI's strategy of maintaining a firm position in the carbonated soft drinks market and increasing
the revenue share of non-carbonated beverage in its portfolio. ' ‘

Unfortu_nately, commodity pressure increased significantly, especially sugar, a major cost component,
whare ite price sharply increased. In addition, the company is overlapping the effects of election-related
spending that fuelled volume growth in 2010 together with a long, hot peak weather season, .

Cost of sales consists primarily of raw and packaging materials costs, direct labor and manufacturing
overhead costs, Cost of sales in 2011 increased by3% as compared with the annualized 2010 cost of
sales due to increases in sugar costs and other major raw and packaging materials,

In the first quarter of 2011, sugar price per bag reached its peak, 26% higher than average 2010, as
supply felt short from maijor suppliers in Brazil, India and Australia. To temper the impact on cost of goods
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sold of sugar price increase, the Company has implemented an effective cost management and strategic
pricing that maintained a healthy revenue mix.

As a result, the Company's grosé profit for the calendar year 2011 decreasead by 6% as compared with
the annualized gross profit due fo the increase in sugar and fuel-driven input costs. Gross profit as a
percentage of sales decreased from 23% in 2010 t0 21% in 201 1.

Operating expenses, which. consists mainly of selling and distribution, general and administrative

expenses and marketing expenses, for the year remained stable as management sustained its efforts to

control costs. As a percentage of net sales, operating expenses in both 2010 and 2011 ramiained the

same at 19%.5eilling and distribution expenses were maintained at 12% of net sales, the same figure as
that of 2010. Notably, general and administration axpensges decreased by10%.

The Company posted a net income of P289 million, which is lower by 38% than in annualized 2010 net
income. The Company expects net income to improve on the back of the stabilization of sugar prices at
lowear [evels, increased marketing efforts and industry growth turnaround.

Six-month Period Endad December 3, 2010 versus Fiscal Yoar Ended June 30, ."2010

With continued focus on driving affordability and availability across the country, the Company posted
strong gross sales revenue of #9.6 billion for the six-months ended December 31, 2010.  Annualized
sales revenue grew by 3% in midst of fierce cormnpetition. The Company continued to expand its offering
of beverages products through new product innovations such as Lipton Sparkling and Tropicana Juice
Plus and packaging innovations such as Pepsi slim cans. ‘

The sales revenue growth was tempered by unprecedented increase in sugar cost, which is one of key
raw materials used by the Company, in 2009, sugar price started to rise as rain damaged crops in Brazil,
the largest producer, and dry weather curbed output in India, the second-largest supplier. As supply
slowed and demand continued to rise, the inventory reserves of many countries, including the Philippines,
became depleted resulting to higher sugar prices and significantly affecting sugar-dependent food and
beverage industries. In October-Degember 2010 quarter, sugar prices increased by 12% versus January-
March 2010 quarter and 55% versus Octobar-December 2009, The result was gross profit amounting to
1.8 billion, while gross profit margin was 22% for the six-month ended December 31, 2010, down from
year ago gross profit margin of 29%. Generally, profit is geared towards the Jan-June period of each
year, representing the peak season, In 2010, it had shifted given the national slections in May 2010 and
the hot weather. Thereby, impacting consumer spending for'the six-months ended December 31, 2010,

The Company has continued to manage costs tightly, with minimal fluctuations versus year ago. increase
in selling and distribution as well as marketing expenses were in line with the increase in revenue
General and administrative expenses increased dug to one-time restructuring cost relating to the change
in sharsholders. Overall, operating expenses as a percentage of net sales was maintained at 20% baoth
for the six months ended December 31, 2010 and the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Nef income
amounted to R{130 milfion, while net income margin was at 2% for the six-months ended December a1,

2010. The Company's continued efforts to drive top-line growth, while maintaining tight cost control will
be the sustaining force in the years to come. -

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010 versus 2009

The Company delivered a strong, milestone year in terms of top-line sales. It continued its focus on
driving the growing NCB market and maintaining CSD share through continuing the strategic agenda to
drive affordability and availability acrogs the Philippines. Nat sales increasad by 13.2% from 2008 and

have nearly doubled from five years ago, an impressive feat given the aggressive competition and
marketplace challenges, o ' ‘ '
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The sales surge was led by NGBs, posting an impressive 28% in-revenue growth. With this development,
NCB share in the revenuea mix grew from 26% {o 29%, which is in line with the sirategy to fully embrace
the heaith and weliness trend. CSDs also presented a strong 8% in revenue growth, surpassing the last 7
years growth in this market. The strong CSD sales were buoyed by the national elections and tha hot
weather.

The impressive sales numbers however were tempered by rising sugar prices, which increased by 22%.
n 2010, sugar prices rose to a 35-year high as rain damaged crops in Brazil, the largest producer, and
dry weather curbed output in India, the second-largest supplier. As supply slowed and demand continued
fo rise, the inventory reserves of many countries, including the Philippines, became depleted resulting to
higher sugar prices and significantly affecting sugar-dependent food and beverage industries.

Despite this acute development, gross profit remained steady at P4.21 billion cormpared o last year's
gross profit of P4.19 billion, while operating income slipped to PF96 million compared to last year's figure
of P1.1 bilion. EBITDA likewise remained steady at P2.2 billion versus year ago figure of P2.2 billion,
while EBIT dropped to P1.04 bilion versus year ago figure of P1.2 billion, weighed down by higher
depreciation and amortization resulting from recent expansion programs.

Management was able to mitigate the rige in sugar prices in part by continuing to successfully control and
reduce operating expenses from 24% and 21% of sales in 2008 and 2009, respectively, to 20% in 2010.
Notable reductions are in the area of selling and distribution expenses (from 13% of sales in 2009 to 12%
in 2010) where management's rationalization' and re-engineering programs have managed to deliver
suparior service at much lower cost. S ‘ ‘

Marketing expenses as a percentage of sales were likewise lower (from 4% of sales in 2009 to 3% of
sales in 2010). Focused marketing anchored on sirategicaily targeted programs resulted in sales
Increases amidst modest marketing spending. General administrative expenses remained steady at 4%
of sales in 2010 and 2009, showing a firm-wide effort to manage the controllablé variables in the income
statement. The Company’s continued efforts to drive top-line growth, while maintaining tight cost contral
will be the sustaining force in the years to come, ‘

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY

The Company's operations are cash intensive. This capability to generate cash is one of its greatest

strengths. With its liquidity, the Company has substantial financial flexibility in varying operating policy in

response (0 market demands, in meeting capital expenditures through internally generated funds and in .
providing the Company with a strong financial condition that gives it ready access to financing alternatives

(refer to Note 21 to the December 31, 2011 Audited Financial Staternents for a detailed discussion on the

Company’s revolving credit facilities as of December 31, 2011). '

Credit sales over the past three years have remained at the leve! of 64% to 68% of total sales, This credit
sales level reflacts a shift from a direct distribution mode to a more efficient model of fostering partnership
with distributors and muiti-route Entrepreneurial Distribution System contractors as well as increase in
Modern Trade business. Liquidity has remained healthy. Coilection period were at 28 to 30 days, while,

inventory days were at 9 to 11 days for the past three years. Trade payable days have remained at
manageable Jevels. ' '

Increase in current assets from R2 817 million as of Decembear31, 2010 to R3,114 million as of December
31, 2011 were due to ingreases inreceivablesofR237 million, amounts from cashofR54million and prepaid

expenses of B 41million. This was offset by decrease in due from related parties and inventariesofR23
miliion and 212 million, respectively.

Non-current assets increased from £6,320 million as of December31, 2010 to H7.085 million as of |
December 31, 2011mainly due to additions to property, ptant and equipment {net of depreciation) of 2482
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million and bottles and cases (net of arortization) of 8237 million, in line with the Company’s continued
expansion of plant capacity.

Increase in current liabilities from RB2,892 million as of December31, 2010 to B3,581million as of
Becember 31, 2011 is mainly due to increzse in Accounis Payable &Accrued Expenses ofR149 million,
Notes Fayable of 2550 million, and decrease in Income Tax Payable of211 million. ‘

Non-gurrent Liabilities increased from RE90miflion as of December 31, 2010 to 8675 million as of
‘December 31, 2011 due to increase in Other Non-current Liabilities or233 milion and Deferred Tax
Liabititiesori252 million. ‘

Total assets increased from BR@,137 milion as of December 31, 2010 to R10,199 milion as of
December 31, 2011 mainly due to the significant increase in noncurrent assets described above. Total
liabilities increased from 3,482 million as of December 31, 2010 to 24,255 million as of December 31,
2011 mainly due to similar factors stated in increase in current liabilities. Total equity increased from
B5 655 million to R5,944 million on account of net income of 289 million for the calendar year ended
December 31, 2011, :

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The following are the Company's key performance indicators. Analyses are employed by comparisons
and measurements based on the financial data of the current period against the same period of previous
year.

‘ 2011 2010
Current ratio . Current assets over current liabilities 09:1 1.0:1
Solvency ratio ‘ Net income plus depraciation and 0.3:1 0.5:1
amortization over {ofal liabilities ‘

Bank debt-to-equity ratio Bank debt over total equity 0.13:1 0.04:1
Asset-to-equity ratio Toial assets over equity ‘ ‘ 1.7 .1 16:1
Operating margin Operating income over net sales 2.4% 3.6%
Net profit margin Net income over net sales 1.7% 2.7%
Interest rate coverage ratio Earnings hefore interest and taxes ' ‘

: over interest expense ‘ 16.7 .1 84.1:1

Gurrent ratio decreased mainly due to the increase in notes payable, The changes in solvency, debt-to-
equity and asset-to-equity ratios were mainly due to the decrease in net income and increases in total
assets and liabilities. The changes in operating margin, net profit margin and interest rate coverage ratios
were afiributable to the decreases in operating income and net income due to significant increases in
sugar costs and other major raw and packaging materials.

MATERIAL COMMITMENTS FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Company has ongoing definite corporate expansion projects approved by the BOD. As a result of
this expansion program, the Company spent for property, plant and equipment as well as bottles and
shells amounting toR21.808for the year ended December 31, 2011, £0.745 billion for the six-months
ended December 31, 2010 and R1.127 billion for the year ended June 30, 2010, To this date, the
Company eontinues to invest in msjor capital expenditures in order to complete the remaining expansion
projects lined up in line with prior calendar year spending. '

FACTORS THAT MAY IMPACT COMPANY’S OPERATIONS / SEASONALITY ASPECTS

Refer to ltem 1 (2) (0) on discussion of Major Risks.
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SIGNIFICANT ELEMENTS OF INCOME OR LDSS‘THAT DID NOT ARISE FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS ‘ _
There was no income or losses arising from discontinued operations.

ITEM 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Please see Exhibit | hereof for the December 31, 2011Audited Financial Statements.

ITEM 8. INFORMATION ON INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT

The Compény has engaged the seivices of an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)} to conduct
an audit and provide objective assurance on the reasonableness of the financial statements and refevant
disclosures. The independent CPA is solely responsible to the Board of Directors.

The appointment of the independent CPA ig submitted to the Audit Committes, the Board of Directors and
shareholders for approval. The representatives of the independent CPA are expected to be present at
the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting and will have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do
so, and are expactad to be available to respond to appropriate questions. Upon request, the independent
CPA can also be asked to attend meetings of the Audit Committee and the Board, to make presentations
and reply to inquiries on matters relating to the Company’s financial statements.

The Company has appointed ManabatSanagustind Co. as its independent CPA for the audit of its
financial statements for the calendar year ended Pecember 31, 2011,

Aggregate fees billed by the Corporation’s external auditor for professional services in relation to (i) the
audit of the Corporation's annual financial statements and services in connection with (2) statutory and
regulatory filings, and (i} tax accounting, compliance, advice, planning and any other form of tax services
are summarized as follows: ‘

Calendar Year | Six Months Fiscal Year
ended period ended | ended June 30,
December 31, | December 31, 2010
~ 2011 2010
Statutory audit fees | P 3.83 Million | P 3.00 Million P 3.68 Million
i Tax advice feas - - -
Tatal £ 3.83 Million | P 3.00 Miflion P 3.68 Million

The Audit Committes of the Company reviews and approves the audit plan and sc;ope of work for the

above services and ensures that the rates are competitive as compated fo. the

equally competent external auditors performing simifar servicas.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING

AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There has been no change in the inde
independent CPA on matters relatin
practices, tax laws and regulations, financial statement d

the three (3) mast recent fiscal years,

'

pendent auditing firm or handling partner or disagreements with the
g to the application and interpretations of accounting principles or
Isclosures or audit scope and procedures during

fees charged by other



PART Il - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Term of office

Diractors elected during the annua! meeting of the stockholders will hold office for one {1) year until their
successors are duly elected and qualified, except in case of death, resignation, disqualification or removal
fram office. - Directors who were elected to fill any vacancy hold office only for the unexpired term of their

predecessors.

Directors ‘
The following are the names, ages, citizenship and year position was assumed, of the incumbent
directors, mc:ludmg :ndependentdlrectors of the Company:

Name Age Citizenship | vear Position
Yeon-Suk No 47 : Korean 2010
Partha Chakrabarti AT ‘ Indian 2010
Jaehyuk Lee ‘ 58 Korean 2011
| Choonglk Lee* 47 Korean 2012
Byoung Tak Hur* . 49 Korean 2012
Qasim Khan ‘ 55 Pakistani 2008
John L. Sigalos N 45 American 2009
Rafael M. Alunan Ii[*** 63 Filipina 2007
Oscar 5. Reyes*™™ - 65 Filiping 2007

*Replaced Mr. inho Kim who resigned effective February 21, 2072
**Raplaced Mr. Hwang Chung who resigned effective Febryary 21, 2012
*** Independartt Director

Executive Officers
The following are the names, ages positions, citizenship and year position was assurned, of the
incumbent executive officers of the Company:

Name Age | Citizenship Position - Year Position
| ‘ : was Assumed
Yeon-3uk No AT Korean ‘ Chief Executive Officer 2012
Partha Chakrabarti 47 | Indian President 2010
T Senior Vice-President and 2010
Akash Shah : . )
38 Canad; an Chief Financial Officer
. . S Senior Vice-President 1998
Daniel D. Gre . &9 , !
. gorio, Jr. 1 & Fllipino Manufacturing and Logistics '
- . o Senior Vice-President, Human | 2011
Celerino T. Grecia Il 65 ‘ '
| Filipino Resources/EIR/Legal
Juan Gabriel P. Sison | 55 Filiping Exscutive g" o President, 2011
ales - .
Samuel M. Dalisay, Jr. | 62 Filipino _Vice-President, Supply Chain 2011
Ma. Resario G.Z, 43 Filipino. Corporate Secretary and 2007 7
Nava Compliance Officer
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Background Information and Business Experience
Directors: ' ‘

YEON-SUK NO .

Mr. No is the incumbent Chief Executive Officar of the Cormpany. Prior to his appointment as CEQ, he
was the Executive Vice-President and Chief Strategy Officer of the Company. Previously, he afso held a
number of positions in Lotte Chilsung Beverage Co., Lid. including being the Head of the QOverseas
Business Department, Sales Branch, and Sales Strategy & Support Team. He was also Manager of
Product Planning, Advertisement, Information and Strategy in said company. Mr. No holds & Bachelor of
Business Administration degree from the Hanyang University. o

PARTHA CHAKRABARTI : :

Mr. Chakrabarti has been employed by PepsiCo since 1994 and he remains a PapsiCo emplayee while
holding his current position in the Company under a formal secondment agreement. He is currently the
Company's President. Prior to this, he was the Company’s Exscutive Vice-President/Chief Operating’
Offtcer for Finance, Treasury, HR/EIRC/Legal, Manufacturing and Logistics and before that, he was its
Senior. Vice-President/Chief Financial Officer. Mr, Chakrabarti began his career with PepsiCo India, where
he held & number of positions before moving to Vietham as Chief Financial Officer of PepsiCo's business
there. Befare joining PepsiCo, he worked for ICI India. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Commerce from the University of Calcutta and is an Associate of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in India. :

JAEHYUK LEE

Mr. Lee is the current President/CEO of Lotte Chilsung Beverage Co., Lid., Lotte Liguor Co., Lid. and
Lotte Asahi Liquor Co., Ltd. Prior positions held inciuded being President of Lotte HQ, CEO of Lotteria
Co.. Ltd., and Senior Managing Director of Lotte Chilsung Beverage Co., Lid. - '

CHOONG IK LEE - ‘
Mr. |.ee has been with the Loite Group for 23 years now. He is currently the Director of the International
and New Business Division of the Lotte Group. Prior to this appointment, he was the Division's General
Manager, was Deputy General Manager of Lotte Group's Corporate Strategy and Planning Divigion, and
before that, Assistant Manager of the Marketing Division of Lotte Confectionery Co., Ltd. He hoids a
Bachelor of Science in Food Science and Technology from Seoul National University.

BrounG Tak Huk

Mr. Hur is currently the Director of Lotte Chilsung Beverage Co., Ltd.'s Overseas Business Department.
His past work experience in Lotte Chilsung Beverage Co., Ltd. included being Team Leader of the
Overseas Business team and having worked at the Export, Information and Strategy, Daveloprnent,
Quality Control and Produet Control departments thereof He was also previously connected with the
Lotte Foundation.

Qasiv KHAN

Mr. Khan has been connected with PepsiCo for the last 24 years and has occupiad various executive and
tnanagerial roles in different regional offices of PepsiCo. He is currently General Manager of PepsiCo’s
North Asia and South Asia Business Unit. Prior to joining PepsiCo, he worked for Procter & Gamble, He
holds an MBA and Marketing degrees (with honors) from Michigan State University. '

JOHN L. S1GALOS '

Mr. Sigalos is currently PepsiCo's Chief Financial Officer for the Asia-Pacific region. He has occupied a
variety of positions in PepsiCo for the past 14 years, including being Chief Financial Officer of PepsiCo
Thaitand and Vice-President for Non-Carbonated Beveragas in PepsiCo’s China business unit. He holds
an MBA from the Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania with cual major in Finance and Strategic
Management and a Bachelor of Arts degree in East Asian studies {(Cum laude) from Yale University,
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RarFaEL M. ALunan Il ‘

Mr. Alunan has had extensive experience in the private and public sectors. He gits on the Boards of Sun
Life of Canada (Philippines}, Inc., Sun Life Financial Plang, Ing., Sun Life Asset Management Company
and Grepalife Asset Management Corp., and on various board committees. Mr. Alunan is also on the
Board of University of 5t. La Salle and sits on various board committees, He is & regular columnist of
Business World. He obtained his double degree in Business Administration and History-Political Science
from the De La Salle University, affended the Masters in Business Administration-Senior Executive
Frogram of the Ateneo de Manita University, and obtained a Master's degree in Public Administration
from Harvard University, John F. Kennedy School of Government.

OSCAR 5. REYES

Mr. Reyes is the incumbent Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company. He was Country
Chairman of the Shell Companies in the Philippines and concurrently President of Pilipinas Shell
Petroleum Corporation, and Managing Director of Shell Philippines Exploration B.V. for many years. He
holds a Bachelor of Arts in Economics (Cum laude) from Atenso de Manila University and participated in
the Program for Management Development at the Harvard Business School. He is currently the Senior
Executive Vice-President, Chief Operating Officer, and Director of the Manifa Electric Company. He also
serves as a director and & member of board committees in the boards of companies engaged in banking,
insurance, telecommunications, water distribution, real estate, shipping and mining and as a Trustee of
various foundations.

Exacutive Officers:

AKAEH SHAH

Mr. Shah is currently the Company's Senior Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer under a
secondment agreement from PepsiCo of which he remains an employee. He has been with PepsiCo
since 2003 and has held various Finance management positions. in the Asia-Pacific region, including
China (M&A, Business Development Director), Thailand (Franchise CFQ), and across South East Asia
(Ptanning Director). Prior to joining PepsiCo, he worked for A.T. Kearney, Inc. in North America. He holds
an MBA from INSEAD and a Bachelor of Commaerce dagree from Queen's University in Canada.

DANIEL D. GREGORIO, JR.

Mr. Gregorio is currently the Company's Senior Vice-President for Manufacturing and Logistics. He has
been with the Company for 14 years and during this period, he held various positions in the Company. He
began his career as a systems analyst for Coca-Cola Bottling Philippines, Inc. and rose to the position of
Chief Accountant. In 1987, he moved to Indonesia as Country General Manager for Coca-Cola Amatil,
the owner of the local Coca-Cola bottler. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Industrial
Engineering.

CELERINO T. GRECIA Il

Mr. Grecia is currently the Company’s Senior Vice-President for Human Resources, Employee Industrial
Relations, and Legal. He has been with the Company for 28 years and dunng this period, he held various
positions in the Company's Personnel/Hurnan Resources and Salas dapartments. He holds 2 Bachelor of

Science degree in Criminology (Magna Cum Lauds) and a Bacheior of Laws (Cum Laude) both obtained
from the University of lloilo.

JUAN GABRIEL P. SisoN ‘ ‘

Mr. 3ison is currently the Company’s Executive Vice-President for Sales. Prior to joining the Company, he
was Vlc;e—P_resident for Sales directly reporting to the President/CEO of the GCentury Pacific Group. He has
vas_‘g experience in sales having occupied various positions in the sales departments of Del Monte
Ph!l!ppgnes, Inc., 8.C. Johnson & Son, Inc., Phil-Asia Food Industries, Corp., and Procter & Gamble
Philippines. He haolds a Bachelor of Seience degree in Psychology from the University of the Philippines.

19



SAMUEL M. DALISAY, JR. . ‘

Mr. Dalisay is currently the Company's Vice President for Supply Chain Group, which includes Corporate
Purchasing, National Logistics Services and Marketing Equipment Management. Prior to joining the
Company, he worked as an expairiate in Vietnam and served as Purchasing Director of THP Group until
early 2011.Before that, he had worked for Jollibee Foods Corporation for almost 14 years until 2010
starting as Purchasing Manager for Foods unfit his last position as Corporate Purchasing Diractor for
International Operations, and Sime Darby Pilipinas, Inc. as Materials Management Division Manager for
11 years untit 1996, He is & Gertified Purchasing Manager from the Institute of Supply Management-USA
and a Professional Agricultural Engineer. He holds a Master in Business Management degree from the -
Asian Institute of Management. ‘ '

Ma.Rosario CZ. Nava :

Ms. Nava is a practicing lawyer and a member of the Integrated Bar of the Philippines since 1895, She
has been a director and the Corporate Secretary of Solectron Philippines Ing. since 2005 and has been
the Corporate Secretary of CPAC Monier Philippines, Inc. since 2004 and is also currently & Director
thereof. She was also a Director of Hewlett-Packard Philippines Corp. from 2001 to 2002, and re-elected
in 2004 up to 2007, and was its Corporate Secretary from 2008 to 2007. She holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Management, Major in Legal Management (with honors) from the Ateneo de Manita
University and a Jyris Doctor dagree from the Atenco de Manila Law School,

Resignation of Directors
No Director has resigned or declined to stand for ra-glaction to the Board of Directors since the date of

the last Annual Stockholders’ Meeting due to any disagreement on any matter relating o the Caompany’s
operations, policies or practices.

Significant Employees and Family Relationships

No single person is expected to make a significant contribution to the business since the Company
considers the collective efforts of all its employees as instrumental fo the overall success of the
Company’s business. The Company is not aware of any family relationship between or among the
aforementioned Directors or Executive Officerg up to the fourth civil degree.

Except for the payment of annual directors’ fee and per diem allowances, the Company has not had any

transaction during the last two (2) years in which any Director or Executive Officer had a direct or indirect
interest. :

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings -

None of the aferementioned Directors or Executive Officers is or has been involved in any criminal or
bankruptcy proceeding, or is or has been subject to any judgment of a competent court barring or
otherwige limiting his invelvement in any type of business, or has been found to have violated any
securities laws during the past five (5) years and up to the latest date,

20



ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers
The aggregate compensation paid or accrued (in P

hilipping Peso) in the calendar year period-ended

December 31, 2011, from July 1 to December 31, 2010 and the fiscal years 2010, and 2009 to the
following Executive Officers is set out in the table below:

Name Year Salary Bonus Others
Aggregate for CEQ and | July 1 to Dews. 31, 2010 21,944 303 2,898,333 -
four {4) most highly CY 2011 44 780,422 1,042,500 -
compensated below- 'Estimated 2012 40,135 081 665,500 -
named executive -
officers
All other directors and July 1 to Dec. 31, 2010 2,032 941 - 766,000"
officars as a group CY 2011 5,674,566 - 1,376,470%
unnamed Estimated 2012 7.536 750 414,760 1.080.000*

* Thig refates to per diern allowances and annual directors fea paid to the directors.

Tha following are the five highest compe irectors and/ar officers of the Company:

1. Yeon-Suk No — Chief Executive Officer (effective from February 21, 2012) and Exgcutive Vice-
President & Chief Strategy Officer (until February 20, 2012) in 2012; Hwang Chung — Chairman
of the Board & Chief Executive Officer (resigned on February 21, 2012) in 2011. Micky Yong ~
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer (refired on October 20, 2010h in 2010

2. Partha Chakrabarti = President (effective from October 20, 2010}

3. Akash Shah — Senior Vice-President & Chief Financial Officer in 2012 and 2011; Felix 8. Yu -

" Executive_Vice-President & Chief Operating_Officer for National Sales Operations (refired on
October 20, 2013) in 2010
4. Daniel L. Gregorio, Jr. — Senlor Vice-President for Manufacturing & Logistics
5. Juan Gabrigl P, Sison — Executive VicePresident, Sales (effective fro fiy 15 2011) in 2012;
Celerino T. Grecia il — Senior-Vice President, Human Resources/EIR/Legal {effactive from
April 1, 2011) in 2011 and Roberto H. Goce ~ Senior Vice President/Senlor General Manager_in
2010,

There are no special employment contracts between the Company and the above Executive Officers.

Non-executive Directors are entitled to a per diem allowance of US$1,000 for each attendance in the
Company's Board meetings and committee meetings, except for Audit Commitiee meetings where the per
diem allowance is US$2,000. in addition, each Director is entitled to recelve an annuai directors’ fee in
the amount of Five Hundred Thousand Pesos (R500,000.00). Praviously, seven (7) Directors
representing the Guoco Group and Quaker Global Investments B.V. have waived the per diem allowance
as well as the annual directors’ fee, ‘

There are no outstanding warrants or options held by the above Executive Officers and all such officers
and Directors as a group. '
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ITEM12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BEENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
Speurity Ownership of Record and Beneficial Owners of at Least 5% of Qur Securities as of
February 29, 2012, ‘

‘ : Name of
) Name and Address of Record )
Title of . S Beneficial Owner - . Number of
Class a\gl?:rr and Relationship with and relationship Citizenship Shares Held Percentage
with record owner
Lott? Chilsung Beverage Co.,
Ltd. ‘ - :
Common | 245 jamwon-dong, Fﬂm? as 'gd'catEd Korean 1,270,657,644 34.40%
ghares beocho-gu, Seoul, Korea n column
Relationship - Stockholder
Quaker Global invesimeaits BV *
Common | Zonnebaan 35, 3542 Eb! Jtrecht Same as indicated s
shares | The Netherdands "~ 1in column 2 Duteh 1,089,101,359 29.48%
Relationship - Stockhoider
PCD Nominee Corparation (Non-
Filiping)® ‘
37th Flaor, The Enterprise : .
Gammon | Center | Floase refer to Non-Filipine 717,762,983 10.43%
Ayala Avanue, Maiati City
Relationship — please refer to
footnote
PCD Nominee Corporation
(Filipina)*
Gormeon | 37th Floor, The EnterpriseCenter | Please refer to v
shares | Ayala Avenue, Makatrc:ity footnote Filipino 569,242,686 16.41%
Relationship — please refer to
foothote

'Lotte Chilsung Beverage Co., Ltd. ("Lotte”) is & comporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the
. laws of Korea with principal office at 50-2 Jamwon-dong, Seacho-gu, Seoul, Koraa. Lette, through itz Board of
Dirgctors, has designated Mr. Yeon-Suk No to vote its shares of stock in the Corporation.

2 Quaker Global Investments B.V. "QGI") i¢ a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of tha laws
+ of the Netherlands with principal office at Zonnebaan 38, 3542 EB Utrecht, The Netherlands. QGI, through its Board
of Directors, has designated Mr. Partha Chakrabarti to vote its shares of stock In the Corporation,

* PCD Nominee Corporation is the registered owner of shares bensficially owned by pariicipants in the Philippine
Central Depository, Inc. (PCD), a private company organized to implement an automated book entry system of
handling securities fransactions in the Philippines. While PCD Nominee Corporation is the registered owner of the
shares in the Corporation's books, the beneficial ownership of sueh shares pertains to PCD participants (brokers)
and/or their non-Filipino clients, whather individuals or corporations, in whose names these shares are recorded in
their respeciive books. Under PCD procedures, when an issuer of a PCD-eligible issue will hold 2 stockholders'
meeting, PCD will execute a pro-forma proxy in favor of the participants for the total number of shares in their
reapective principal securities account, as well as for the total number of shares in their elient s\curities account. For
shares held in the principal securities account, the participant is appointed as proxy with full voting rights and powers
as ragistered owner of such shares. For shares held in the client =acuritles account, the participant is appointed as

proxy with the obligation to constitute a sub-proxy in favor of its clients with full voting and other rights for the number
of shares beneficially owned by them, '

) | .

Same as footnote 1 above except that the beneficial ownership of shares registerad in the name of PCD Nomince
Corporation pertalns to PGD participants (brokers) and/or their Filipino clients, whether individuals or corporations, in
whose names these shares are recorded in thair regpective books. ‘ '
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Security Ownership of Management as of February 29, 2012,

Téﬁ:sgf Name and Address of Owner Eﬁg?g;;;f‘g;:‘f;;; Citizanship Peg.;::; of
Oscar 5. Reves
Chairman of tha Board (Non-Executiva) and
€ommon | (ndependent Director 1 Fifieine Ni
‘ /o Uit 2604 Comporate Canter,
128 Valero Street, Salcede Village, Makati City
Yeon-Suk No
Common Ghief Executlve Orcar .
shares ¢/o Km. 29, National Road, Tunasan, Muntinlupa 1 Keresn Nil
City
Partha Chakrabarti
Gommon President . . .
sharas cfo Km. 28, National Road, Tunasan, 1 Indian Nl
Muntinlupa City
Jaehyuk Lee
Common | Non-Exacufive Director -
Shares | oo 5 Fl. Castle Plaza, Lotte Castle Gold, 7-18, 1 Korean Ni
Shinchun-Dong, Songpa-Gu, Sacul;, Korea 138-727
Chaoong Ik Lee
Gommen MNan-Executive Director - *
sharas &0 25th Fioor, Lotte Bldg. 1, Sogong- Dong,dung- 1 Korean Ni
Gu, Seoul (100 -721), Korea
Byouna Tak Hur
Common | Nan-Executive Director . .
shares c/o & Fl. Caetls Plaza, Lotte Castle Gold, 7-18, T Korean Nl
Shinchun-Llong, Songpa-Gu, Seoul, Korea 138-727
Gasim Khan
Cammon Non-Executive Diractor w .
shares clo 25th Flagr Emporiurm Tower, 622 Sukhumvit 1 Pakistani Nif
Road, Klongton, Klongtoay, Bangkﬂk Thaitand ‘
John L Sigalos
Common MNon-Executive Director w American .
.shares ¢/o 20th Floor Caroline Caentar 1 Nl
28 Yun Ping Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
Rafagl M. Alunzan i
Common | Independent Director : - . :
sharas /o 5th Floor, Benpres Building, Exchange Road 1 Filipino N
cerner Maraleo Avenue, Orligas Center, Pasig City
Akash Shah
Common | Senigr Vice-President and
Sharms Chief Financial Officer 0 Canadian 0%
c/o Km. 29 National Road, Tunagan,
_ Muntinlupa City
Daniel D. Gregorio, Jr. -
Common h . . . 70.000 .
Senior Vice-Prazident, Manufacturing and Loglstics ; y - g
shares | /o Km. 20 National Road, Tunasan-,gl\fluntin?t?pa City Diract ownership Fiipino 00019%
Common Ce[e_nrino T. Grecia I
Sharas Senior Vice-Prgsldent. Human Resources/EIR/Legal 80,000 Filiping 00014%
jlcr Krg. %91 I\:atmnal Road, Tunasan, Muntinlupa Ciy
uan Gabtlel P. Sison
Csu:; TE?E" Executive Vica-Prasident, Sales Q Filipino 0%
c/o Km. 29 National Road, T unasan, Muntlnlupa CltY‘
Samuel M. Dalizay, Jr.
Cf‘?hma I:;t;n Vice-President, Sgpply Chain 0 Filipino 0%
&/o Km. 29 National Road, Tunasan, Muntmlupa City
Ma. Rosario C.Z. Nava
Comton | Corporata Secretary and Complisnce Officer 10,000 .
shares | ofo 7th Floar The Pearlbank Centre Direct ewnership Filipirio 0.0003%
146 Valary Street, Salcedo Village, Makatj Cy

* Each of the directors is the registered owner of at [east one qualifying share.

The aggregate shareholdings of directors and ke
which is approximately 0.0035%

y officers as of February 29, 2012 are 130,009 shares
of the Company’s outstanding capital stock,
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Changes in Control

The Company is not aware of any voting trust agreement or any other similar agreement which may result
in a change in control of the Company. ‘

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Refer to Note 14 fo the December 31, 2010 Audited Financial Statements for details on related party
transactions.

PART IV — CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company's Manual on Corporate Governance (*Manual"), which was adopted on June 21, 2007, and
revised on April 14, 2010 and again on March 25, 2011, details the standards by which it conducts sound
corporate governance that is coherent and consistent with relevant laws and regulatory rules, and
constantly strives to create value for its stockholders, :

Compliance with the Manual's standards is monitored by the Company’s Compliance Officer, Ultimate
responsibility rests with the Board of Directors, which also maintains three (3) standing committees apart
from the Executive Committee, each charged with oversight into specific areas of the business activities.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee of the Board is responsible for developing and monitaring the Company's risk
management policies. This Committee, which meets regularly, reviews the detailed financial and
operating performance of the Company and progress against the relevant Annual Operating Plan and
Operating Targets, monitors the Company's progress against key initiatives, pricing strategies and plansg,
sales and marketing plans, capital expenditure planning and key decisions on organization structure and
people.

The Executive Committee shall ba composed of at least seven (7) members, namely, the Chief Executive
Officer, the Chief Strategy Officer, the Chief Operating Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, and three (3)
regular directors:

The incumbent members of the Executive Committee as of February 29, 2012 are as follows: Messrs,
Yeon-5uk No (Chief Executive Officer), Partha Chakrabarti (President — eguivalent of Chief Operating
- Officer), Akash Shah (Chief Financial Officer), Qasim Khan, and Jashyuk Lee. -

There are two (2) vacancies in the Executive Committes. The Board of Directors of the Company has
tecided to defer filling the vacancias in the Executive Committee and to take this up at the Organizational
Meeting of the newly-elected Board of Directors after the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

Audit Committee : :
Th_e Audit Committee assists the Board in its fiduciary responsibilities as it provides an independent and
objective assurance to the Management and shareholders of the Company that business operations are

carried out according to approved standards and objectives, and the Company's resources are preserved
and productive. ' '

'I_'he Audit Committee shall be composed of at least four (4) diractors, preferably with accounting and
fmance background with at least one member with audit experience. Two (2) of the members must be
independent directors, including the Chairman of the committee. The Audit Commitiee reports to the
Board and is required to meet at least once every three (3) months.

The incumbent Chairman and members of the Audit Commiitee as of February 29, 2012 are as follows:
Messrs, Oscar 5. Reyes (Ghairman), Jaehyuk Lee, John L., Sigalos, and Rafael M. Alunan |li,
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Compensation and Remuneration Committee ‘

The Compensation and Remuneration Commitiee, based on objective and impartial studies, utilizes a
formal and transparent framework in determining the remuneration of the members of the Board and the
Company’s key executives. This committee’s decisiona on compensation issues are consistent with the
requirements of objectivity, fairness and relevance.

The Compensation and Remuneration Committes shall be composed of at least three (3) members,
including one (1) independent director. The Board may also designate non-voting members ag it may on
a case-io-case basis require for purposes of advising said committee. The Compensation and
Remuneration Committee reports i the Board and is required to meet af least once each year.

The incumbent members of the Compensation and Remunsration Committee as of February 29, 2012
are as follows: Messrs. Oscar S, Reyes, John L. Sigalos and Rafae) M. Alunan |11

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee ensures that the Company's Board of Directors is made up of visionary,
ethical and competent business leaders who can contribute to the vast range of ideas and reach
decisions that will protect and grow the business. This committee also makes sure that the designated
Board members address the higher purposes of the Company as a responsible enterprise which has a
positive value on the communities where it operates,

The Nomination Committee shall be composed of at least three (3) members, including one (1)
independent director. The Board may also designate non-voting members as it may on a case-l0-case
basis require for purposes of adviging said committee. The Nomination Committee raports to the Board
and Is required to meet at least once each year.

The incumbeant mefnbara of the Nemination Committee as of February 29, 2012 are as follows: Messrs.
John L. Sigalos and Rafael M. Alunan Il

There is a vacancy in the Nomination Committee, The Board of Diréctors of the Company shall fill the
vacancy in the Nomination Committee prior to the Annual Stockholders’ Mesting.

The chairmanship of the Executive, Nomination, and Compensation and Remuneration Commitiees shall
be decided later by the unanimous vote of its Director-maembers once it convenes in meetings held for this
purpose pursuant to the By-laws of the Company. ‘

For purposes of evaluating compliance with the Manual, the Company has adopted the self-rating form
prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission (‘SEC”). The Company has comptied with its
Manual through the election of two (2) independent directors to the Company's Board; the constitution of
the Audit, Compensation and Remuneration, and Nomination Committees pursuant to its By-laws and the
election of the Chairman and members of such committeas, which include the independent directors: the
conduct of regular meetings of the Board of Directors and the various committees of the Board above
stated; adherence to the writien Code of Conduct prepared by the Company’s Human Resources
Department; and adherence to applicable accounting standards and disclosure requirements,

The Company adheres to a business plan, budget and marketing plan. Management prepares and
submits to the Executive Comrmittee of the Board and to the Board, on a regular basis, financial and

operational reports which enable the Board and Management to aszess the effectiveness and efficiency
of the Company.

While the Company has fulfilled its corporate governance obligations and there has been no deviation

from the Manual as of date, it continues to evaluate and review its Manual to ensure that best practices
©on corporate governance are being adopted, :
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PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

ITEM 14. EXHIBITS AND REPDRTS ON SEC FORM 17-C

The following are the reports on SEC Form 17-C, as amended, which were filed during the last six (6)
month period covered by this Report:

a. SEC Fotm 17-C dated 16 September 2011

At the Meeting of the Compensation and Remuneration Committee of the Comporation (*Committee”) held
on 16_September 2011, Mr. Hwang. Chung was elected as Chailrman of the Committee effective

immediately.

At the Regular Mesting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation held on 16 September 2011, the
Board of Directors confirmed the appointment of Mr. Oscar S. Reves a3 member of the Compene.atlon
and Remuneration Committee effeciive immediately. ‘

b. SEC Form 17-C dated 8 December 2011

At the Requiar Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation held on 8 December 2011, the Board

of Directors conﬁrmed the appointment of Juan Gabriel P Sison as Executive Vice-President for Sales
and Samuel M. Dalisay, Jr. as Vice-President for Supply Chain effective 1 January 2012.

PART V| - SIGNATORIES

The followling are the authurized signatories of the Company:

1. Yeon-Suk No in his capacity as the Chief Executive Officer. Said position is the Companys
equivalent position for principal executive officer,

2. Partha Chakrabarti in his capacity as the Presndent Said position is the Company's equivalent’
position for principal vperating offi Icer.

3. Akash Shah in his capacity as the Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Said position is
the Company's aquivalent position for prmclpal financial officer.

4. Agustin 3. Sarmiento in his capacity as AVP-Controller of the Company. Said pasition is the
Company's equivalent posntron for comptroller and principal EICCDLmtII’]Q officer.

5. Ma. Rosario C. Z. Nava in her capacity as the Corporate Secretary of the Compahy.
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- SIGNATURES:

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Cdde and Section 141 of the Caorporation Code, this
report lg ‘'signed on bEhal'fﬁINth? Igsmi:g{zby the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of

~Muntinlupa Cityn

Hy:

Chigf Exetutive Officer Fresident
AKASH SHAH ° AGUSTIN S. SARMIENTO
Senior Vice-Prosident and AVE-Controller
Chief Financial Offfcsr

. 47

A.ROSARIO C.Z. NAVA
Comorate Secretary

27



REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
l\funtm{uba Eﬂ'y . _ )88,

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me In the City of _ Muntinjupa City
this _ thdayof __JUN 19 2012 by: '

' Competent
Name Evidence of identity Valid Until
- Yeon-Suk No ‘ Passport No. M83102845 Nov 13, 2018/ Kerea
Partha Chakrabarti | .F-;assport No. Z1751780 Feb. 25, 2018/ Manita
Akash Shah - Passport No. BAB47570 Oct. 22, 2014/ Bangkok
Agustin S, Sarmiente S38 No. 33-2456012-6
Ma. Rosario C.Z. Nava 88 No. 43-0480082.8

who have satisfactorily praven their identity to ma through the above identification, that they are
the same pergson who persanally eignad tha foregoing instrument before me and acknowledged

that they executéd the same.
AT YMD!O @ saNDOVAL
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Commigsion No NG 1 2-008; Muntiflupa City
. _ et Decamber 31, 2013
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Doc. No. 3% - &:BF‘; ;;::Nh 0z 3519; 020&2908: Rizal ,
B P Q. ST7 01-03-2012; heunbanips G
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PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011 apd 2010 and Jugps 30, 2010



Manabat Sanagustin & Co., CPAs Telephone  +63 (2] BES 7000

The KPMG Center, 8/F Fax +63 {2) 894 1985
€787 Ayala Avenua tnternat www.kpmg.corn.ph
Makati City 1226, Metro Manila, Philippines E-Mail manila@kpmng.com.ph

Branches . Subic - Cabu - Bacolod - loilo

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders : HU&E@&Q&Q‘&%% Lsgg‘ﬂg;b ©
Pﬁpsi-(:()la PIDduc‘tS Philippi]’ms, Iﬂc. LARGE TAXPAYERS ABBISTAMNCE BIVISION 1
Km. 29, National Road - f'
~ Tunasan, Muntinlupa City Date; APR 15 2[”3 SD§ i
Report on the Financial Statements RECEIVED 7,
CHENEE O, DEL ROSARIO ;

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc.,
which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the
staternents of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash
flows for the year ended December 31, 2011, for the six-month period from July 1 to

December 31, 2010, and for the year ended June 30, 2010, and notes, comprising a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory mformatlon

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as ‘
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial staterne:nts that are :
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Audirors " Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial :
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not i
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s intemal control. =
An audit also includas evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall L
presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion. ‘



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc. as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2011, for the
six-month period from July 1 to December 31, 2010, and for the vear ended June 30, 2010, in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations (RR)
No. 15-2010 and RR No.19-2011 of the Bureau of Internal Revenue

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole, The supplementary information in Note 26 to the financial
statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management. The supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in our audits of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the supplementary
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. -

MANABAT SANAGUSTIN & CO., CPAs arey SE, TR

i
¥

Date] AFR 1§ 2012 {5

‘ ' RECEIV
OBERTO G. MANABAT ' CHENEE O, DEL @'{?& ARIO
Partner .

CPA License No. 0030640
SEC Accreditation No. 0677-AR-1, Group A, valid until March 30, 2014
Tax Identification No. 106-187-127
BIR Accreditation No, 08-001987-14-2010

Issued June 30, 2010; valid until June 29, 2013
PTR No. 3174016MA

Issued January 2, 2012 at Makati City

March 23, 2012
Makati City, Metro Manila
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PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

Kim. 28 National Roed, Tunazan, Muntinlupa City 1773 Philippines

Tal. No:: (632) 50-7001 Fax No.: (522) R50-7923 BUREAD OF INTERNAL BEVENUE
Webgite: www. papeiphilippines.com ‘ LARGE TAXPAYERS Smnvecs '

LARGE TAXPAYERS ABSISTANTE v e o8 |

‘ T
Date}] APR 18 2012 Sp&:

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY Y S |
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RECHEIVED |
. CHENEE 6. DEL ROBARIO |

The management of Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines Inc., is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements as at December 31, 2011 and
2010 and for the year ended December 31, 2011, for the six-month period ended
December 31, 2010 and for the year ended Jume 30, 2010, in accordance with the
prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein including the additional
components attached thereir. This responsibility includes designing and implementing
internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements and submit the
saine to the stockholders-or members.

Manabat Sanagustin & Co. CPAs, the independent auditors, appointed by the
stockholders has examined the financial statements of the company in accordance with

Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed its
opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such examination.

DSW | YEON-SUK NO
Chai e Board : Chief Executive Officer

) (oo fo b P

PARTHA CHAKRABARTI AKASH SHAH
President : . SVP and Chief Financial Officer

Signed this 2amdday of Movch 2012
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PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, ING.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL, POSITION

!

(Amounts in Thousands) %ﬁaﬁ“ﬁy}’“] ﬂf}
CHENMEE O, DR ROSARLIO
December 31
e Note Mfﬁﬁ‘(‘_-ﬂ ﬁw E) e
ASSETS “"""‘:T‘:‘” i‘::‘nnd Rerhrds {ivigm 4 ‘ !
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 21 P359, Eé
Receivables - net 5 21 1,260,824 “'xl
Inventories _ ] 097 234 o
Due from related parties - 13,21 382,859 405,465
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 113,629 72,383
Total Current Assets 3,114,204 2,816,780
Noncurrent Assets "
Investments in associates 7 527,316 330,785
Bottles and cases - net 8 2,552,890 2,315,553
Property, plant and equipment - net g 3,857,126 3,374,631
Other noncurrent assets 147,569 99,176
Total Nonenrrent Assets 7,084,901 6,320,143
P10,199,105 P9,136,925
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities -
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses 10,13, 21,22, 25 P2,830,692 P2,681,903
Notes payable 211 21 750,000 200,000
Income tax payable - 10,568
Total Current Liabilities 3,508,692 2,292,471
Noncurrent Liabilities |
Deferred tax liabilities - net 12 419,234 367,113
.Other noncurrent liabilities 22,25 2E5.341 222 550
Total Noncurrent Liabilities ‘ 674,575 589,663
Total Liabilities - 4,255.267 3,482,134
Equity
Capital stock 23 554,066 554,066
Additional paid-in capital 23 1,197,369 1,197,369
Retained earnings 24 4,192,403 3,903,356
Total Equity 5,943,838 5,654,791
- P10,199,105 P9,136,925

See Notes to the Financial Stalements.



PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIFPINES,

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INC
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Da

Date

B TAX r
RGE’:‘?&?I\YERS ASSISTANCE DIVIGION 1

VEMNUE
YICE

PAYEIRS SER

]

PR 18 720 1 8Db
Lf‘..m.._#.i
RECEIVED

WNEE 0. DEL_ROSARIC

F
Six-Month
For the Period from
Year Ended July 1 to For the Year
. December 31 December 31 Ended June 30
Note 2011 2010* 2010
GROSS SALES 20 P19,960,600 P9,395,014 P18,789,186
Less sales returns and discounts 20 2,832,082 1,301,030 2,660,341
NET SALES ' 17,128,518 8,293,984 16,128,845
COST OF GOODS SOLD 14 13,449,473 6,450,573 11,917,903
GROSS PROFIT 3,679,045 . 1,843,411 4,210,942
OPERATING EXFENSES
Selling and distribution 15 2,105,864 1,058,662 2,004,950
General and administrative ié 678,900 391,845 708,092
Marketing . 13 486,632 228,517 501,774
‘ ‘ 3,271,396 1,679,024 3,214,816
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 407,649 - 164,387 996,126
FINANCE AND OTHER
INCOME (EXPENSES)
Interest income ‘ 4,13 7,332 6,173 12,947
Interest expense . 11 (26,001) (1,544) {2,785)
Equity in net earnings (losses) of o
assoclates ‘ 7 (3,469) 797 2,264
Other income - net . 18,895 15,103 45915
' 6,757 20,529 58,342
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 414,406 184,916 1,054,463
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12 125,359 55,230 315,792
NET INCOME/TOTAL
COMPREHENSIVE o
INCOME P289,047 P129,686 P738,676
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share 19 P0.08 P0.04 P0.20

* O December 22, 2010, the Securities and Exchange Commission approved the change in the Company's accounling pertod from

Sfiseal year ending June 30 to calendar year ending December 31.
Ses Notes to the Financial Statements.
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' (Amounts in Thousands) RECE VR D
‘ CHENEE 0. DEL ROSARIO
For the
Six-Month
For the Period from
~ Year Ended July 1 to For the Year
December 31 December 31 Ended June 30
Note 2011 2010* 2010
CAPITAL STOCK 23 P554,066 P554,066 P554,066
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN
CAPITAL 23 1,197,369 1,197,369 1,197,369
RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of period 1.903,356 4,143,047 3,958,437
Net income for the period 289,047 - 129,686 738,676
Dividends declared 24 - (369,377) (354,066)
Balance at end of period 4,192,403 3,903,356 4,143,047
P5,943,838 P5,654,791 P5,894,482

* (Ot December 22, 2010, the Securities and Bxchange Commission approved the change in the Compar)’s aceouniing pertod from
fiscal year ending Juns 30 to calendar year endmg December 31.

See Notes to the Financial Statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
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RECEIVED ‘
CHENEE 0, DEL ROSARIO
For the
Six-Month
For the Period from
Year Ended July 1 to For the Year
December 31  December 31  Ended June 30
Note 2011 2010* 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM ‘
OPERATING ACTIVITIES .
Income before income tax P414.406 P184,916 P1,054,468
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 17 1,179,213 611,623 1,147,314
Allowance for probable losses
in values of bottles and cases,
machinery and equipment,
impairment losses, inventory
obsolescence and
others provisions - net j 635 61,223 34,209 28,602
Retirement cost 22 50,850 28,614 53,460
* Interest expense 17 26,001 1,544 2,785
Loss (gain) on disposal of ‘
property and equipment 4,158 2,260 (1,650)
Equity in net losses (earnings) -
of associates 7 3,469 (797) (2,265)
Interest income 4,13 (7.332) (6,173) (12.947)
Operating income before
working capital changes 1,722,988 856,196 2,269,767
Changes in operating assets and
liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables 3 (2717,393) 30,407 {71,524)
Inventories 6 {79) (184,382) (127,192)
Due from related parties 22,606 (240,380) (48,631)
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets (80,928) (23,823) 23,368
Increase in accounts payable and ‘
accred expenses 10 172,529 243,335 156,356
Cash generated from operations 1,560,023 681,353 2,202,144
Interest received 7,394 6.602 12,671
Income taxes paid (44,124) (127.210) (240,174)
Contribution to plan assets 22 {50,000) - (56,000)
Net cash provided by operafing ‘
activities 1,473,293 560,745 1,918,641




il

BUREAL OF NITERMAL BEVESNUL
LARGE TANPAYRERE *xﬁ:m-.u; ,
LARGE, mmﬂ\wm Aﬁ’%ﬁ‘mﬁcn ﬂWh N L

Date! APR 15 200 j EIHCH
RECEIVED
CHENEE 0. DELAOSARG }
For the
Six-Month
For the Period from
Year Ended July L to For the Year
December 31  December 31  Ended June 30
Note 2011 2010* 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM
. INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of ‘
property and equipment P5,930 P7,885 P10,454
Additions to:
Property, plant and equipment g (984,097) (447,336) (679,743)
Bottles and cases 8 (221,630) (297,924) (447,117)
Decrease (increase) in other
noncurrent assets ‘ (48,393) 9,624 35,141
Net cash used in investing activities (1,948,190) (727,751) (1,081,265)
CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from (repayments of)
notes payable 550,000 200,000 (50,000)
Interest paid 21,121) (1,544) (2,785)
Cash dividends paid 24 - (369,377) (554,066)
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities 528,879 (170,921) (606,851)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE)
IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 53,982 (337,927) 230,525
CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT
BEG]I\TN]NG OF PERIOD 305,686 643,613 413,088
CASH AND CASH :
EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF PERICD 4 P359,668 P305,686 P643,613

% On December 22, 2010, the Securities and Exchange Commissdion approved the change in the Compary s aceounting period from

Sfiscal year énding June 30 to calendmr vear ending December 31,

See Notes fo the Finanoicl Stolements,



PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Data and
When Otherwise Indicated)

1. Reporting Entity

Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc. (the “Company”) was registered with the
Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on March 8, 1989, primarily to
engage in manufacturing, sales and distribution of carbonated sofi-drinks (CSD), non-
carbonated beverages (NCB) and confectionery products to retail, wholesale, restaurants
and bar trades. The registered office address and principal place of business of the
Company is at Km. 29, National Road, Tunasan, Muntinlupa City.

The Compamny is listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) and has been included in
the PSE composite index since February 1, 2008. Lotte Chilsung Beverage Co. Ltd., with
a 34.4% stake in the Company, is the largest shareholder of the Company. Quaker Global
Investments B.V. is the other major shareholder with a 29.48% stake. Lotte Chilsung
Beverage Co. I.td. was organized and existing under the laws of South Korea. Quaker
Global Investments B.V. was organized and existing under the laws of the Netherlands.

On December 22, 2010, the SEC approved the change in the Company’s accounting
period from fiscal year ending June 30 to calendar year ending December 31.

2. Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs). PFRSs include statements named
PFRS and Philippine Accounting Standards (PASs), including Philippine Interpretations,
issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC). ‘

The accompanying financial statements of the Company were approved and authorized
for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors (BOD) on March 23, 2012, The BOD has
the power to amend the financial statements after issuance.

The accompanying corparative financial statements as at and for the six-month period
from July 1 to December 31, 2010 were prepared in connection with the change in the
Company’s accounting period from year ending June 30 to calendar year ending
December 31. The amounts presented for the prior periods in the statements of
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity, statements of cash flows and
notes are for the six-month period from July 1 to December 31, 2010 and for the year
ended June 30, 2010 and, accordingly, are not entirely comparable to the financial
statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 201 L.

Basis of Measurcment
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.




Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are measured using the currency of the pritary economic
environment in which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented in
Philippine peso, which is the Company’s functional currency and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousands, except per share data and when otherwise indicated.

Use of Estimates and Judgments
The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRSs requires

management to make estimates and judgments that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements. The estimates and judgments used in the accompanying financial
statements are based on management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as
of the date of the Company’s financial statements. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Judgments, estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and
are based on historical experiences and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and
in any future periods affected.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the

following judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most
sigmificant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements;

Functional Currency

Baszed on the economic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the
Company, the functional currency has been determined to be the Philippine peso. It is the
currency that mainly influences the sales price of goods and the cost of providing these
goods. \

Determining Whether an Avrangement Contains a Lease

The Company uses its judgment in determining whether an arrangement contains a lease,
based on the substance of the arangement and makes assessment of whether the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets, the arrangement
conveys & right to use the asset and the arrangement transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company.

Operating Lease - The Company as a Lessee

The Company has entered into various lease agreements covering land and facility. The
Company has determined that all significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties remain with the lessors.

Rent expense pertaining to these leased properties amounted to P195 million for the year
ended December 31, 2011, P93 million for the six-month period from July 1, 2010 to
Decemnber 31, 2010 and P179 million and for the year ended June 30, 2010 (see Note 25).

Operating Lease - The Company as a Lessor

The Company has entered into a lease agreement as lessor. The Company has determined
that it retains all significant risks and rewards of ownership of the propemes which are
leased our under Dperatmg lease agreements.

Rent income pertaining to these leased properties amounted to P2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2011 and P1 million for the six-month period from Tuly 1 to
December 31, 2010 and for the year endad June 30, 2010 (see Note 25).



"

Finance Lease - The Company as a Lessee

The Company entered into finance lease agreements covering pallets and power
generation facilities for a period of five (5) to ten (10) years. The Company has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that
it has substantially acquired all the significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of these pallets and power generation facilities and the provisions of the lease agreements
effectively transfer ownership of the assets to the lessee at the end of the lease term. As at
December 31, 2011and 2010, the present value of minimum lease payments amounted to
P369 million and P571 million, respectively (see Note 25).

Estimates

The key assumptions concerning the ﬁlture and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty as of reporting date that have the most significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets, liabilities and equity within the next
financial ycar are as.follows:

Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses on Receivables.

The Company maintains an allowance for impairment losses at a level considered
adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables. The Company performs
regular review of the age and status of these accounts, designed to identify accounts with
objective evidence of impairment and provides these with the appropriate allowance for
impatrment losses. The review is accomplished using a combination of specific and
collective assessment approaches, with the impairment losses being determined for each
risk grouping identified by the Company. The amount and timing of recorded expenses
for any period would differ if the Company made different judgments or utilized different
methodologies. An increase in the allowance for impairment losses would increase
recorded operating expenses and decrease current assets. Impairment losses amounted to
P40 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, P21 million for the six-month period
from July 1 to December 31 2010 and P16 million for the year.ended June 30, 2010. As
at December 31, 2011 and 2010, allowance for impairment losses on receivables
amounted to P168 million and 128 million, respectively. Receivables, net of allowance
for impairment losses, amounted to P1.261 billion and P1.024 billion as at December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 5). No allowance for impairment losses was
recogmized for the amounts due from related parties as at December 31, 2011 and 2010 as
these were deemed to be fully collectible (see Note 13).

ﬁ,.snmatzng Net Realizable Value of Inventories

In determining the net realizable value of inventories, the Company considers inventory
ohsolescence based on specific identification and as determined by management for
inventories estimated to be unsaleable in the future. The Company reduces the cost of
inventories to a realizable value at a level considered adequate to reflect market decline
in value of the recorded inventory. The Company reviews, on a continuous basis, the
product movement, changes in consumer demands and introduction of new products to
identify inventories which are to be written down to net realizable values. The net
realizable value of inventories amounted to P0.997 billion and P1.009 billion as at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 6).



Estimating Useful Lives of the Excess of Cost of Containers over Leposit Values

The excess of the acquisition costs of the returnable bottles and cases over their deposit
values is deferred and amortized over their estimated useful lives (EUL), principally
determined by their historical breakage and trippage. A reduction in the EUL of excess of
cost over deposit value would increase the recorded amortization and decrease
noncutrent assets, and vice versa. As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, accumulated
amortization of excess of cost over deposit values of returnable bottles and cases
amounted to P4.719 billion and P4.041 billion, respectively. The carrying amount of
bottles and cases amounted to P2,553 billion and P2.316 billion as at December 31, 2011

~and 2010, respectively (see Note §).

Estimating Allowance for Unusable Containers

An allowance for unusable containers is maintained based on specific identification and
as determined by management to cover bottles and shells that are no longer considered fit
for use in the business, obsolets or in cxcess of the Company’s needs. Provision (reversal
of provision) for losses on unusable containers amounted to P5.6 million, P2.1 million
and (P2.5) million for the year ended December 31, 2011, for the six-month period from
July 1, to December 31, 2010 and for the year ended June 30, 2010, respectively. As at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, allowance for unusable containers amounted to P15.6
million and P11.5 million, respectively (see Note 8).

Estimating Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company reviews annuatly the EUL of property, plant and equipment based on the
period over which the assets are cxpected to be available for use and updates those
expectations if actual results differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear
and technical or commercial obsolescence. It is possible that future financial performance
could be materially affected by changes in these estimates brought about by changes in
the factors mentioned. A reduction in the EUL of property, plant and equipment would
increase the recorded depreciation and amortization expenses and decrease noncurrent
assets, and vice versa.

The EUL are as follows:
Number of Years
Buildings - 40
15 or term of the lease,
Leaschold improvements whichever is shorter
Machinery and other equipment 3-25

Furniture and fixtyres 10

~ As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment amounted to P3.857 billion and P3.375 billion, respectively (see Note 9).

Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses on Non-financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an jtem
of bottles and cases, property, plant and equipment, investments in associates and other
noncurrent assets may be impaired. Determining the amount of the assets, which requires
the determination of future cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use
and ultimate disposition- of such assets, requires the Company to make estimates and
assumptions that can materially affect the financial statements. Future events could cause
the Company to conclude that these assets are impaired. Any resulting impairment loss
could have material impact on the finencial position and financial performance of the
Company. ‘



The preparation of the estimated future cash flows involves estimations and assumptions.
While the Company believes that its assumptions are appropriate and reasonable,
significant changes in these assumptions may materially affect the Company’s
assessment of the recoverable amounts and may lead to future additional impairment
charges. As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, none of these impairment indicators exist
on the Company’s bottles aud cases, property, plant and equipment, investments in
associates and other noncurrent assets. As at December 31, 2011 and
2010, the carrying amount of bottles and cases amounted to P2.553 billion and P2.316
billion, respectively (see Note 8). As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment amounted to P3.857 billion and P3.375 billion,
respectively (see Note 9). Investments in associates amounted to P527 million and P531
million as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 7).

Estimating Realizability of Deferred Tox Assets

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at each reporting date
and reduces deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.
The Company also reviews the expected timing and tax rates upon reversal of temporary
differences and adjusts the impact of deferred tax accordingly. The Company’s
agsessment on the recognition of deferred tax assets is based on the forecasted taxable
income of the subsequent reporting periods. This forecast is based on the Company’s past
results and fiture expectations on revenues and expenses. The Company has no
unrecognized deferred tax assets as at December 31, 2011 and 2010. As at December 31,
2011 and 2010, the Company has net deferred tax liabilities amounting to P419 million
and P367 million, respectively (see Note 12).

Estimating Retirement Liability

The determination of the retirement liability and retirement cost is dependent on the
selection of certain assumptions used by the actuary in calculating such amounts. Those
assumptions include, among others, discount rates, expected returns on plan assets and
salary increase rate. Actual results that differ from the Company’s assumptions, subject
to the 10% corridor test, are accumulated and amortized over future periods and
therefore, generally atfect the recognized expense and recorded obligation in such future
periods. As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company has unrecognized net actuarial
losses amounting to P175 million in 2011 and net actuarial gains amounting to P5 million
in 201¢ (see Note 22).

Contingencies

The Comtpany is currently involved in various legal proceedings. The estimate of the
probable costs for the resohrtion of these claims has been developed in consultation with
outside counsel handling the Company’s defense relating to these matters and is based
upon an analysis of potential results. The Company currently does not believe that these
proceedings will have a material adverse effect on its financial statements. It is possible,
however, that future financial performance could be materially affected by changes in the
estimates or in the effectiveness of the strategies relating to these proceedings
(see Note 25).



3. Significant Accounting Policies

The followipg explains the significant accounting policies which have been adopted in
the preparation of the financial staternents:

Changes in Accounting Policics

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial years
except for the following relevant revised standard and improvements to standards, which
have been adopted as at January 1, 2011 and have been applied in preparing these
financial statements: ‘

» Revised PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures (2009), amends the definition of a
related party and modifies certain related party disclosure requirements for
government-related entities. The adoption of this revised standard did not have any
significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Improvements.to PFRSs 2010, contain 11 amendments to six standards and to one
mnterpretation. The following are the said improvements or amendments to PFRSs,
none of which has a significant effect on the financial statements of the Company.

- PFRS 7, Financial nstruments; Disclosures. The amendments add an explicit
statement that qualitative disclosure should be made in the context of the
quantitative disclosures to better enable users to evaluate an entity’s exposure to
risks arising from financial instruments. In addition, the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASE) amended and removed existing disclosure requirements.

- PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting. The amendments add examples to the list
of events or fransactions that require disclosure under PAS 34 and remove
references to materiality in PAS 34 that describes other minimum disclosures.

Financial Instruments

Date of Recognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in
the statements of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets,
recognition and derecognition, as applicable, is done using settlement date accounting.
Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regnlations or convention in the marketplace.

Initial Recognition of Financial Instruments. Financial instruments are recognized
injtially at fair value, which is the fair value of the consideration given or received. The
fair value of the consideration given or received is detenmined by reference to the
transaction price or other market prices. If such market prices are not reliably
determinable, the fair value of the conasideration is estimated as the sum of all future cash
payments or receipts, discounted using the prevailing market rate of interest for similar
instruments with similar maturities. The initial measurement of financial mstruments,
except for those designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), includes
transaction cost.

Subsequent to imitial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, available-for-sale (AFS)
financial assets, FVPL financial assets, and loans and receivables, Financial liabilities are
classified as financial liabilities at FVPL or other financial liabilities.



The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments are acquired and
whether they are quoted i an active market. Management determines the classification

and AFS financial assets,

Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-detivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are Dot quoted in an active market. They are not
entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not designated
ag AFS financial assets or FVPL financial assets. Loans and receivables are carried at
amortized cost, less impaimment losses. Amortization is determined using the cffective
interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in income when the loans and
receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through amortization process,

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents, receivables and due from related parties are
included in this category. '

Cash ineludes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amoynts of cash with original
maturities of three months or less from dates of acquisition and that are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value. ‘

Other Financial Liabilities. This category pertains to financial liabilities that are not held
for trading or not designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the liability. These include
liabilities arising from operations or borrowings.

- The financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently carried
at amortized cost, taking into a¢eount the impact of applying the effective interest method
of amortization (or accretion) for any related premium, discount and any directly
attributable transaction costs.

Included in this category are the Company’s notes payable and accounts payable and
accrued expenses that meet the above definition (other than liabilities covered by other
PFRSs, such as income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and accrued retirement cost).

Derecognition of Financial Instruments. A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of
a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

=  the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired;

* the Company retains the right to recsive cash flows from the financial asset, but has
assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party
under a “pass-through’ arrangement; or _

* - the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
and either: (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial
asset; or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the financial asset, but has transferrcd control of the financial asset,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from a financial asset
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
financial assct nor transferred control of the financial asset, the financial asset is
recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the financial assct.



are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification js treated as a derecognition
of: the carrying amount c_)f the original liability and the recogmition of a new liability at
fair value, and any resulting difference is recognized in profit or Joss,

disclosures require the determination of fajr value, Fair values have been determined for
meagurement and/or disclosure purposes, when necessary, based on the market values,
being the estimated amount for which an asset could be exchanged on the date of the
valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after
proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without compulsion. When applicable, further information about the assumptions made
in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that agset or hability,

The different levels of fair value of financial instruments carried at fair value, by
valuation method have been defined as follows:

* LevelI: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;
“ Level2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that arc
- observable for the asset or liability, either directly (ie., as prices) or
‘ indirectly (i.c., derived from prices); and
" Level3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on obseryable market
data (unobservable inputs).

Day 1 Profit. When the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair
value of other observable current market transactions of the same instrument or based on
4 valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the
Company recogmizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value
(@ *Day 1° profit) in profit or loss. In cases where no observable data are used, the
difference betwsen the transaction price and model value is only recognized in profit or
loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For
each transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of recognizing the
‘Day 1’ profit amount.

Offsetting Finoncial Instruments. Financial assets and Habilities are offset and the net
amount presented in the statements of financial position when, and only when, the
Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously, This is not generaily the case
with master netting agreements and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in
the statements of financial position, '

Capital Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital
Capital stock is classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
common shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effect,

When shares are sold at premium, the difference between the proceeds and the par value
is credited to “Additional paid-in capital” account.



Inventories '

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). The cost of
inventories, which is determined using the standard cost method adjusted to actual cost,
includes expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion -
costs and other costs incurred in bringing these inventories to their present location and
condition, In the casc of manufactured inventories and work in process, cost includes an
appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity.

The NRV of finished goods is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less estimated costs necessary to make the sale, The NRV of raw and packaging
materials, spare parts and supplies is the estimated cutrent replacement cost.

Investments in Associates ‘

© Associates are those entities in which the Company has significant influence, but not
control, over the financial and operating policies and which are neither subsidiaries nor
joint ventures, The financial statements include the Company’s share of the total
recognized earnings and losses of associates on an equity accounted basis, from the date
that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases. The
application of the equity method of accounting is based on the Company’s beneficial
interest in the net profits and net assets of the associates. Distributions received from the
associates reduce the carrying amount of the investments. Income and expense resulting
from transactions between the Company and the associates are eliminated to the extent of
the interest in the associates. When the Company’s share of losses exceeds the cost of the
mvestment in an assogiate, the carrying amount of that interest ig reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued, except to the extent that the Company has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate,

The Company’s investiments in associates include an amount that represents the excess of
acquisition cost of investment over the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
investee companies at the date of acquisition, net of impairment in value, if any.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same period as the
Company’s financial statements.

Botiles and Cases

Bottles and cases include returnable glass bottles and cases stated at deposit values and
the excess of the acquisition costs of returnable bottles and cases over their deposit
values. It also includes certain pallets acquired under finance lease, These assets are
deferred and amortized using the straight-line method over their EUL (5 years for
returnable bottles and 7 years for cases and pallets) determined principally by their actual
historical breakage and trippage. An allowance is provided for excess, unusable and
obsolete returnable bottles and cases based on the specific identification method.

Prope ipment ‘

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost (which comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable cost in bringing the asset to working condition. and location for
its intended use) less accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairment losses, if
any.

Subsequent costs (including costs of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and
equipment) that can be measured reliably are added to the carrying amount of the asset
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to
the Company. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.



Construction in progress represents assets under congtruction and is stated at cost. This
includes cost of comstruction and other direct costs. Assets under construction are
transferred to the related property, plant and equipment account when the construction
and installation and related activities necessary to prepare the property, plant and
equipment for the intended use are completed, and the property, plant and equipment are
ready for services, Comstruction in progress is not depreciated until such time that the
relevant assets are completed and put into operational use but tested for impairment
losses.

Depreciation commences once the assets become available for use. Depreciation is
computed on a straight-line basis over the EUL of the assets. Leasehold improvements
are amortized over the EUL of the improvements or the term of the lease, whichever is
shorter.

The assets’ residual values, EUL and depreciation and amortization methods are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate to ensure that the period and
depréciation and amortization methods are consistent with the expected pattern of
“economic benefits from those assets.

When an asset is disposed of, or is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal, the cost and accumulated depreciation,
amortization and impairment Josses, if’ any, are removed from the accounts and any
. resulting gain or loss (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
~ the carrying amount of the item) arising from the retirement or disposal is recognized in
profit or loss.

airment
Financial Assets :
A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is comsidered to be impaired if
objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of -
the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows
of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

If there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried
at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s otiginal effective interest rate (i.c., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). Time vaiue is generally not considered when the effect of the discounting is
not material. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount based
on the original effective interest rate of the asset. The financial assets, together with the
associated allowance accounts, is written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral, if any, has been realized or has been transferred to the
Company. Impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss i or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment,



If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account.
If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is recognized in profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the
reversal date,

Non-financial Assets _

The carrying amounts of the Cormpany’s non-financial assets such as investments in
associates, bottles and cases, property, plant and equipment and other noncurrent assets
are reviewed at each reporting date to detcrmine whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired, or whether there is any indication that an impairment loss
previously recognized for an asset in prior periods may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If any -such indication exists and when the carrving amount of an asset
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount, the asset of cash-generating units (CGU) to
which the asset belongs is written down to its recoverable amount. Recoverable amounts
are estimated for individual assets or investments or, if it is not possible, for the CGU to
which the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount of a non-financial asset is the greater of the asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use, The fair value less costs to sell is the amount
obtainable from the sale of the asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal, Value in use is the present
value of the future cash flows expected to be delivered from an asset or CGU., In
assessing value in use, tho estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash
flows largely independent of those froin other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is charged against operations in the year in
which 1t arises. A previously recogmized impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in cstimate used to detenmine the recoverable amount of an asset, however,
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any accumulated depreciation and amortization for property and equipment and bottles
and cases) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior vears. A reversal
of an impairment loss is credited to current operations.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will

flow to the Company and the revenue can be measured reliably.

Sale of Goads

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fajr value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of retumms and discounts. Revenue is recognized when
persuasive evidence exist that the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs
and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, and there is no continuing
involvement with the goods. If it is probable that discounts will be granted and the
amount ¢an be measured reliably, then the discount is recognized as a reduction of
revenue as the sale is recognized. Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership coineide
with the delivery of the products to the customers, and under normal eredit terms.
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Rent Income

Rent income from operating leases is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

Expenses
Expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of

outflows or decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decreases in equity,
other than those relating to distributions to equity participants. Expenses are generally
recognized when the services are rendered or the expenses are incurred.

Cost of Goods Sold
Cost of goods sold includes direct material costs, labor and mamufacturing expenses. This
is recognized when the service is rendered or the expense is incurred.

Selling, Distribution and Marketing Expenses

Selling; distribution and marketing expenses consist of costs associated with the
development and execution of marketing promotion activities and all expenses connectad
with selling, setvicing and distributing Company products. Selling and marketing
expenses are generally recognized when the service is rendered or the expense is
incurred.

General and Administrative Expenses

Expenses incurred in the general administration of the day-to-day operation of the
Company are generally recognized when the service is rendered or the expense is
incurred.

Finance Income and Finance Costs

Finance income comprises interest income on bank deposits and money market
placements and dividend income. Interest income is recognized in profit or loss as it
accrues, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognized in profit or
loss on the date that the Company’s right to receive payment is established.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings. All finance costs are recognized
in profit or loss as they accrue.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis as either finance income or
finance cost depending on whether foreign currency movements are in a net gain or net
loss position.

Leases :

Determination of Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset.

Operating Leqses !
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the

asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as
expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.



Finance Leases

Finance leases, which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the lower of fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of
the lease, Lease payments are apportioned between the finance cost and reduction of the
outstanding lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance cost is charged directly to operations.

Capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the EUL of the assets or the
respective lease terms, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized if they are directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction of a qualifying asset. The capitalization of borrowing costs: (a) commences
when the activities to prepare the assets are in progress and expenditures and borrowing
costs are being incurred; (b} is suspended during extended periods in which active
development, improvement and construction of the assets are interrupted; and (c) ceases
when substantially all the activitics necessary to prepare the assets are complete. These
costs are amortized using the straight-line method over the EUL of the related property,
plant and equipment to which it is capitalized. Bortowing costs that are not directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method. Other borrowing costs are
generally expensed in the period in which these are incurred.

Provisions .

A provision i¢ a liability of uncertain timing or amount. It is recognized when the
Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; it is
probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are revisited at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects the current
market assessment of the time value of money, and, where appropriate, the risks specific
to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of tire is recognized as interest expense under “Finance and Other Income
(Expenses)” in the statements of comprehensive income.

Contingencies ‘

Contingent Habilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Taxes

Income taX expense comprises curtent and deferred tax. Income tax expense is
recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly
in equity or in other comprehensive income, in which easc it is recognized in equity or in
other comprehensive income.

Current Tax

Current tax. assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authority. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at

the reporting date.



Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation purposes and the carryforward tax benefits of vnused net
operating loss carryover (NOLCO) and unused tax credits from excess minimum
corporate over income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax (RCIT),
Deferred tax is not recognized for temporary differences on the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss; temporary differences related to investments
in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will
not reverse in the foreseeable future; and taxable temporary differences arising on the
initial recognition of goodwill. -

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the
carryforward tax benefits of unused NOLCO and unused tax credits from excess MCIT
can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rate that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

In determining the amount of cwrrent and deferred tax the Company takes into account
the impact of uncertain tax positions and whether additiona) taxes and interest may be
due. The Company believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open
tax years based on its assessment of many factors, including interpretations of tax law
and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may
involve a seties of judgments about future events. New information may become
available that eauses the Company to change its judgment regarding the adequacy of
existing tax labilities; such changes to tax Labilities will impact tax expense in the period
that such a determination is made.

- Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes Jevied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity. :

Value-added Tax (VAT) :
'Revanucs,. expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, except:

*  where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which case the sales tax is recognized as part of
the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expensc item as applicable;

and
= receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT inciuded.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payables in the Company’s statements of financial
position. ' ‘



Retirement Plan

The Cotnpany has funded, noncontributory, defined benefir retirement plan covering
sub_stantially all of its employees. Retirement cost is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method. This method reflects service rendered by employees to the
date of valuation and incorporates assumptions concerning employees’ projected salaries.
Actuarjal gains and losscs are recognized as income or expense when the net cumulative
unrecognized actuarial gains and losses at the end of the previous reporting year
exceeded 10% of the higher of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the
fair value of plan assets at that date. These gains or Josses are recognized over the
expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plan.

The defined benefit liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation and actuarial gains and losses not recognized reduced by past service cost not
yet recognized and the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be
settled directly. If such aggregate is negative, the asset is measured at the lower of such
aggregate or the aggregate of the cumulative unrecognized nct actuarial losses and past
service cost and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of
refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions of the plan (the asset
ceiling test).

The past service cost, if any, is recognized as an expense on a strajght-line basis over the
average period until the benefits become vested. If the benefits immediately vest
following the introduction of, or changes to, a retirement plan, past service cost is
recognized immediately.

" Foreign Currency Trangactions '

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is the Philippine peso.
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Philippine peso based on the prevailing
cxchange rates at the date of the fransactions. Foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and liabilities are translated in Philippine peso using the exchange rates prevailing
at the reporting date. Exchange gains or losses arising from translation of foreign
currency denominated items at rates different from those at which they were previously
recorded are credited or charged to current operations.

Earnings Per Share (EPS) -

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net income by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period, with retroactive adjustments for any stock
dividends declared.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net income atfributable to common
shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
year, adjusted for the effects of any dilutive potential common shares.

Dividends on Common Shares

Cash dividends on common shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity
when approved by the BOD of the Company. Dividends for the year that are approved
after the reporting date are dealt with as a nonadjusting event after the reporting date.

Segment Reporting ' :

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities
from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses
that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components. All operating
segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its
performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.




* Events After the End of the Keporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s financial
position at the reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements.
Post vear-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements when material.

New or Revised Standards, Amendments to Standards, Improvements to Standards and

Interpretations Not Yet Adopted |
A number of new or revised standards, amendments standard, improvements to standards
and interpretations are effective for annuval periods beginning after Janvary 1, 2011, and
have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. None of these is expected
to have any significant effect on the financial statements of the Company, except for
PAS 19, Employee Benefits (amended 2011), which will become mandatory for the
Company’s 2013 financial statements and will affect the recognition of actuarial gains
and losses and PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which becomes mandatory for the
Company’s 2015 finaocial statements and could change the classification and assessment
of financial assets. The Compauy does not plan to adopt these standards early and the
extent of the impact has not been determined,

The Compauy will adopt the following new standards and amendments to standards that ‘
are relevant to the Company in the respective effective dates:

To be Adopred on Jamuary 1, 2012

v  Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets (Amendments to PFRS 7), require
additional disclosures about transfers of financial assets. The amendments require
disclosure of information that enables users of financial statements to understand the
relationship between transferred financial assets that are not derecognized i their
entirety and the associated liabilities; and to evaluate the nature of, and risks
associated with, the entity’s continuing involvement in derecognized financial assets.
The effective date of the amendments is for- periods begmnmg on or after
.Tuly 1, 2011, Early application is permitted.

To be Adopted on January 1, 2013

» PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities. PFRS 12 contains the disclosure
requirements for entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements (i.e.
joint opera.tmns or joimt ventures), associates and/or unconsolidated - structured

" entities, aiming to provide information to enable users to evaluate: the nature of, and
risks associated with, an entity’s interests in other entities; and the effects of those
interests on the entity’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

= PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. PFRS 13 replaces the fair value measurement
guidance contained in individual PFRSs with a single source of fair value
measurement guidance. It defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value and sets out disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. It
explains how to measure fair valuc when it is required or permitted by other PFRSs,
It ‘does not introduce new requirements to measure assets or liabilities at fair value
nor does it eliminate the practicability exceptions to fair value measurements that
currently exist'in certain standards.
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= PAS 19, Emplayee Benefits (amended 2011). The amended PAS 19 includes the
following requirements: (&) actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in
other comprehensive income; this change will remove the corridor method and
eliminate the ability for entities to recognize all changes in the defined benefit
obligation and in plan assets in profit of loss, which is currently allowed under
PAS 1%; and, (b) expected return on plan assets recognized in profit or loss is
calculated based on the rate used to discount the defined benefit obligation.

* PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011). PAS 28 (2011)
supersedes PAS 28 (2008). PAS 28 (201 1) makes the following amendments:
. (2) PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, applies
to an investment, or a portion of an fnvestiment, in an associate of a Jjoint venture that
meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale; and, (b) on cessation of significant
influence or joint control, even if an investment In an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the entity does not remeasure the retained
interest,

To be Adopted on January 1, 2015

»  PERS 9, Financial Instruments

Standard Issued in November 2009 [PFRS 9 (2009}

FFRS 9 (2009) is the first standard issued as part of a wider project to replace
PAS 39. PFRS 9 (2009) retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and
establishes two primary measurement catogories for financial asscts: amortized cost
and fair value, The basis of classification depends on the entity’s business model and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. The guidance in
PAS 39 on impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting continues to apply.

t d Issued in October 2010 {PFRS 010
PFRS 9 (2010) adds the requirements related to the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities, and derecognition of financial assets and liabilities to the
version issued in November 2009.

It also includes those paragraphs of PAS 39 dealing with how to measure fair value
and accounting for derivatives embedded in a contract that contains a host that is not
a financial asset, as well as the requirements of Philippine Interpretation from
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee. (IFRIC) 9,
Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives.

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist oft

. | 2011 2010
Cash on hand and in banks P299.668 P205,686
Short-term investments _ 60,000 100,000
' P359,668 P305,686

Cash in banks earns interest at the respective bank deposit rates, Short-term investments
are made for varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Company and earn interest at the respective short-term investment
rates.
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The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk is disclosed in Note 21 to the financial
statements. '

5. Receivables

Receivables consist of:

Note 2011 2010

Trade : _ 21 P1,301,161 P1,086,104
Others 21 128,056 65,764
1,429,217 1,151,868

Less allowance for impairment losses ‘ 168,393 127,989

21 P1,260,824 P1,023,879

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on a 30 to 60 days® term,

- Other receivables consist mainly of receivables from employees, freight and insurance

claims.

The movements i the allowance for irapairment losses on receivables are ag follows:

2011 2010
Note Trade Others Total Trade Others Total

Ralance at beginning

of period - F108,577 Pi9.412 F127,989 Pol1,462 P17,027 F108,489
Impairment losses

recognized during the

period I3 9,452 30,534 49,386 17.110 3,504 20,705
Reversal of write-

offs (write-cffs) ‘

during the period {1,726) 1,744 18 5 (1,210) (1,20%)
Balance at end of ‘

pericd F116,703 P51.690 P168,393 P108,577 P19.412 P127.9858

Impairment losses (reversal of impairment losses) recognized during the period are
included as part of “Selling and distribution expenses” account in the statements of
comprehensive income.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk related to trade and other receivables is disclosed
in Note 21 to the financial statements. '
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a. Inventories

Inventories consist of:

2011 2010

Finished goods:

At cost P462,259 P470,587

At pet realizable value 452,884 466,696
Work in process;

At cost 92,071 3.925

At net realizable value 9,071 3,925
Raw and packaging materials: '

At cost ' 421,447 430,196

Af net realizable valie 408,326 422,587
Spare parts and supplies:

At cost 134,952 122,811

At net realizable value 126,943 116,159
Total inventories at lower of cost and net

realizable value Pog7.224 P1,009,367

Write-down of inventories to net realizable value amounted to P12 million and
P6 million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2010, respectively.
Reversal of write-down of inventories to net realizable value amounted to P3 million for
the six-month period from July 1 to December 31, 2010, The reversal of write-down and
write-down of inventories to net realizable value are included as part of “Cost of Goods
Sold” account in the statements of comprehensive income.

7. Investments in Associates

Investments in associates consist of

Peroentage (%) of
Ownership Amount
2011 2010
2011 2010 (One Year) (Six Months)
Aocquisition cost:
Nadeco Realty Corporation (NRC) 40% 40% P232 508 F232 508
Nadeco Holdings Corporation (INHC) 40% 40% 132 132
232,040 232,640
"_Effect of dilution of ownership in NRC (1,018) {1,018)
| 231,622 231,622
Accumulated equity in net earnings: '
Balance at beginning of period 299,i63 298,366
Equity in net earnings (losses) for the
period {3.469) 797
Balance at end of period 295,694 299163
P527.316 P530,785

The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Company’s financial statements. The financial statements used for the purpose of
applying equity method are the most recent management accounts of the associates as at

December 31, 2011 and 2010.



None of the Company’s equity-accounted associates are publicly listed entities and
consequently do not have published price quotations.

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, the undistributed earnings of the associates included
in the Company’s retained eamings amounting to P296 million and
P299 million, respectively, are not available for distribution to stockholders unless
declared by the associates.

Summarized financial information pertaining to the Company’s associates:

. Asx at December 31, 2011
and For the Year Ended December 31, 2011
Assets  Lisbilities Equity Revenues  Net Income
NRC . P1,101,544 P5%81,969 P519,575 P10,567 (P3,602)
WNHC {consolidated) 1,101,735 580,829 520,906 16,567 (3,133}

Asat Decemnber 31, 2010
and For the Six-Month Period from July 1 to December 31, 2010

Assets  Liabilies Equity Revenues  Net Income
NRC ‘ P1,085,396 P563,488 P521.908 “P5,283 P708
MNHC (consolidated) 1,085,950 563,221 322,729 5,283 229

The associates do not have contingent liabilities incurred jointly with other investors.
Also, the Company is not severally liable for all or part of the liabilities of the associates.

8. Bottles and Cases

Bottles and cases consist of:

2011 2010

Deposit values of returnable bottles and cases on

hand - net of allowance for unusable containers

of P15,601 and P11,545 as at

December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively P323.036 P282.743
Excess of cost over deposit values of returnable

bottles and cases - net of accumulated

amortization*® : 2,214,663 1,999,695
‘ 2,537,699 2,282,438
Bottles and cases in transit 15,191 33,115

P2,552,890 P2,315,553

* This includes pallets under finance lease with net book value of P94 million and P92 million as st December 31, 2011
and 2010, respectively.




The rollforward of excess of cost over deposit values of returnable bottles and cases is as

follows:
. Note 2011 2010
- Gross carrying amount: ,
Balance at begmnmg of period P6,040,346 P5,750,079
Additions 593,665 290,267
Balance at the end of period 6,934,011 6,040,346
Accumnlated amortization _
Balance at beginning of period 4,040,651 3,735,097
Amortization for the period 17 678,699 305,416
Other movements (2) 138
Balance at the end of period 4719348 . 4,040,651
Carrying amount : | |
Balance at end of period P2,214.663 P1,999,695

* Thig includes pallete under finanee lesse of P141 million and P121 million a3 at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
mspectively, with related acoumulated amortization amounting to P48 million and P29 million as at

Deoember 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and net book value of P94 million and P92 million as at December 31, 2011
and 2010, respectively,

The amortization recognized for the period is included as part of “Cost of Goods Sold”
account in the statements of comprehensive income.

9. Property, Plant and Equipment

The movements in this account are as follows:

Mouchinery Euildings and

and Other Leageheld Construction Furniture

Note  Equipment Improvements in Propress and Fixtures Total
Grogs carrying amount: ‘
July I, 2010 P7.351,028 P837.948 F263 887 P30.602 PR 483 465
Addittong - - 447336 - 447336
Disposals/write-off (35,410} {575) - (64) {56,049}
Transfers/reciassifications 181616 5,711 (188,491) 1,164 -
December 31, 2010/ ]

Tanuary 1, 2011 . 7477234 843084 322,732 31702 8,474752
Additions 725,972 100,955 153,890 3.280 984,097
Disposala/write-offz . (102,341) - - (110y  (102,451)
Transfersireclassifications 163,794 6.930 (170,579) (14%) -

- December 31,2011 8,264,659 950,969 506,043 34,727 9,756,398
Aceomulated depreciation

and amortization:

July 1, 2010 4,729.470 487441 - 22907 52393818

Depreciation and amortization 17 282,531 23,006 - 670 306,207

Disposslaiwrite-offs - (45,339) (500) - (63)  {45904)
December 31, 2010/

Tanvary 1, 2011 4,966,662 500,947 - 23,512 5,500,121
Depreciation and amortization 17 459,902 30,016 - 1,596 491 514
Disposals/write-offs (92,253) - - (110} (92,363}
Tranzfers/reclassifications (33} 33 - T -
December 31, 2011 : 5334278 539,996 - 24,993 5899272
Carrying amount: ' ‘

Becember 31, 2010 ‘ P2510,572 F333,137 P5322,732 PEI%0 F3,374,831

December 31, 2011 F2,530,381 F410,975 P5U06,043 F3,729 FP3,857,126
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In 2910, a substantial portion of the Company’s property, plant and equipment and
certain parcels of land owned by NRC is mortgaged and placed in trust under two
mortgage trust indentures to secure the Company’s outstanding notes payable in 2010
(see Notes 11 and 13). ‘

The Company’s bank loans were obtained for working capital requirements, thus no
borrowing costs were capitalized in 2011 and 2010, ' |

Change in EUL of certain Property and Equipment
In 2011, the Company reviewed and changed the EUL of certain- property and equipment
in line with actual utilization.

The changes in EUL in each asset class are as follows:

Number of Years
| Old EUL * NewEUL
Buildings | 20 40
Leasehold improvements 10 15
Machinery and other equipment 4-10 5-25

The effect of the above changes in depreciation expense recognized under “Cost of
Goods Sold™ and “Operating Expenses” accounts in the statements comprehensive
income in the current and future years follows:

2015 and
201 2012 2013 2014 beyond
Increase (decrease)
in depreciation
and amortization
expense (P17%5,306) (P137,357 (P87,371) (P66,790) P466,824

The Company has ongoing definite corporate expansion projects or programs approved
by the BOD. As a result of this expansion program, the Company spent for property,
plant and equipment, a3 well as bottles and cases, amounting to P1.906 billion for the
year ended Decemnber 31, 2011, P0.745 billion for the six-month petiod from July 1 to
December 31, 2010 and P1.127 billion for the year ended June 30, 2010.

10. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of:

Note , 2011 2010
Trade payables 13 P1,954,216 PI1,617,412
Accrued advertising and marketing : 143,886 203,819
Non-trade payables 128,356 95,120
Accrued retirement cost - current 22 50,000 B7.875
Other accrued expenses 25 554,234 677,677

P2,830,692 P2,681,903

The Company’s other accrued expenses consist majnly of accruals for salaries and
wages, other employee benefits, utilities and other operating expenses, and current
portion of obligations under finance lease.



The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk related to accounts payable and accrued
expenses is disclosed in Note 21 to the financial statements, ‘

11. Notes Payahle

This account represents ouistanding short-term loans from local banks amounting to
P750 million as at December 31, 2011, which are payable in lump sum on maturity dates
up to June 18, 2012, Interest rates range from 2.9% to 4.1% in 2011 and 2010,

In 2011, the Company obtained unsecured short-term loans from various local banks
amounting to P550 million. The short-term loans as at December 31, 2010 amounting to
P200 million are secured by two mortgage trust indentures on property, plant and
equipment of the Company, and real estate of a related party, on a pro-rata and pari-
- passu. The carrying amount of the outstanding collateral under the two mortgage trust
indentures amounted to P337 million as at December 31, 2010 (see Notes 9 and 13).

Interest expense on notes payable recognized in profit or loss amounted to P20 million
for the year ended December 31, 2011, P1.5 million for the six-month period from July 1
to December 31, 2010 and nil for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

Information about the Company’s exposures to interest rate risk and liquidity risk is
disclosed in Note 21 to the financial statements.

12. Income Taxes

The components of the income tax expense are as follows:

For the

 Six-Month

For the Period From
Year Ended July 1 to Far the Year
December 31 December 31 Ended June 30

2011 2010 2010

Current tax expense and final

taxes on interest income P73,238 P20,004 P299.62%
Deferred tax expense (benefit)

from origination and reversal

of temporary differences and .

others 52,121 (24.774) 16,164

P125,359 P55,230 P315,792
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Deferred tax liabilities - net are attributable to the following:

2011 2010
Allowance for probable losses in values of bottles |
and cases, impairment losses, inventory
obsolescence and others P106,525 P117,460
Accrual for retirement cost 72,323 72,068
MCIT 40,132 -
Past .servic:e cost 22,664 28,967
241,644 218,495
Bottles and cases (473.422) (418,864)
Marketing equipiment (187.456) (166,744)
(660,878) (583,608)
(P419,234) (P367,113)

The Company’s excess MCIT over RCIT amounting to P40.1 million, which was

incurred in 2011, will expire in 2014.

The reconciliation of the income tax expense computed at the statutory income tax rate to
the income tax expense shown in the statements of comprehensive income is as follows:

For the
Six-Month
For the Period From
Year Ended July 1 to For the Year
. December 31 December 31  Ended June 30
2011 2010 2010
Income before income tax P415,406 P184,916 P1,054,468
Tax rate at 30% P124,322 P55,475 P316,340
Additions to (reductions in)
income tax resulting from the
tax effects of:
Equity in net losses (eamnings)
of associates 1,041 (239) (680)
Nondeductible expenses _ 347 527 2,840
Interest income
subjected to final tax (351) (533 (2,708)
P125,359 P55,230 P315,792

The Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) has issued Revenue Regulations (RR) No, 19-
2011 re: New Income Tax Forms which shall take effect covering income eamed for
taxable year 2011. These RR are issued to prescribe the new BIR Forms that will be used
for income tax filing covering and starting with calendar year 2011, and to modify

. Revenue Memarandurn Circular No. 57-2011.



13. Related Party Transactions

Related party relationship exists when one party has ability to control, directly or
;ndirectly, through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making the financial and operating decisions. Such
relationship also exists between and/or among entities which are under common control
with the reporting enterprises, or between and/or among the rcporting enterprises and
their key management personnel, directors, or its stockholders.

The Company has significant related party transactions which are summarized as
follows: :

2. The Company has Exclusive Bottling Agreements with PepsiCo, Ine. (“PepsiCo™),
the ultimate parent of Quaker Global Investments B.V, a shareholder, up to year
2017 and Pepsi Lipton International Limited ("Pepsi Lipton™), a joint venture of
PepsiCo and Unilever NLV., up to year 2012, Under the agreements, the Company is
authorized to bottle, sell and distribute PepsiCo and Pepsi Lipton beverage products
m the Philippines. In addition, PepsiCo and Pepsi Lipton shall supply the Company
with the main raw materals (concentrates) in the production of these beverage
products and share in the funding of certain marketing programs. The agreements
may be renewed by mutual agreement between the parties. Under the agreements,
PepsiCo and Pepsi Lipton have the right to terminate the contracts under certain
conditions, including failure to comply with terms and conditions of the appointment
subject to written notice and rectification petiod, change of ownership control of the
Company, change of ownership control of an entity which controls the Company,
discontinnance of bottling beverages for 30 consecutive days, occurrence of certain
events Jeading to the Company’s insolvency or bankruptey, change in management
and control of the business, among others. Total net purchases from PepsiCo
amounted to P2.862 billion for the year ended December 31, 2011, P1.524 billion for
the six-month period from July 1 to December 31, 2010 and P2.944 billion for the
year ended June 30, 2010. Total purchases from Pepsi Lipton amounted to P77
million for the year ended December 31, 2011, P36 million for the six-month period
from July | to December 31,2010 and P99 million for the year ended June 30, 20190,

The Company has cooperative advertising and marketing programs with PepsiCo and
Pepsi Lipton that sets forth the agreed advertising and marketing activities and
participation arrangement during the years covered by the bottling agreements. In
certain instances, the Company pays for the said expenses and claims reimbursement
from PepsiCo. The Company incurred marketing expenses amounting to
P487 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, P229 million for the six-month
period from July 1 to December 31, 2010 and P502 million for the year ended
June 30, 2010. The Company’s outstanding receivable from PepsiCo included under
“Due from related parties” account in the statements of financial position, which are
unsecured, noninterest-bearing and are payable on demand, amounted to P76 million
and P48 million as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.



Cn ;:\pril 11, 2007, the Company entered into a Performance Agreement with
PepsiCo to meeat certain marketing and investment levels from 2007 to 2017, as
required by the bottling .agreement with PepsiCo. The agreement requires the
Company to: (1) spend & specified percentage with a minimum dmount for the
beverage products; (2) make certain investments based on a minimum percentage of
the Company’s sales to expand the Company’s manufacturing capacity; (3) invest in
& minimum number of coolers per year to support” distribution expansion; and
(4) expand the Company’s distribution capabilities in terms of the number of active
routes, the number of new routes and the number of trucks wsed for distribution
support, '

In 2011 the Company purchased finished goods from Lotte Chilsung Beverage Co,
Ltd., a major stockhelder. Total purchases for the year ended December 31, 2011
amounted to P2.5 million.

In 2010, certain parcels of land properties of NRC, an associate, were mortgaged to
secure a portion of the Company’s notes payable as at December 31, 2010. The
Company leases these parcels of land where some of its bottling plants are located.
Lease expenses recoghized amounted to P11 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011, P5 million for the six-month period from July 1 to December 31,
2010 and P10 million for the year ended June 30, 2010. The Company has advances
to NRC amounting to P38 million as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, which bear
interest at a fixed rate of 10% per annum and which are unsecured and payable on
demand. The Company also has outstanding net receivables from NRC amounting to
P265 million and P315 million as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively,
which are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and payable on demand. The advances and
receivables are included under “Due from related parties” account in the statements
of financial position,

The Company has outstanding working capital advances to NHC, an associate,
amounting to P4 million as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and which are
unsecured, noninterest-bearing and payable on demand. The advances are included
under “Due from related parties” account in the statements of financial position.

In addition to their salaries, the Company also provides non-cash benefits to key
management personnel and contributes to a defined bengfit retirement plan on their
behalf,

The compensation and benefits of key management personnel are as follows:

For the
Six-Month
For the Period From
Year Ended July 1 to For the Year
December 31  December 31 Ended June 30
2011 2010 2010
Short-term employee benefits P87,699 P40,301 P87,114
Post-employment benefits 2,009 1,176 3,159

P&9,708 P41,477 P90,273
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"14.. Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold consists of:

For the
Six-Month
Forthe  Period From
Year Ended July 1 to For the Year
December 31 December 31  Ended June 30
Note 2011 2010 2010
Materials and supplies |
used i3 P10,294,562 P4,895,786 P9.073,587
Delivery and freight 987,499 446,056 $62,493
Depreciation and
amortization 8 9, 17 859,746 455,268 841,738
Rental and utilities 13,25 377,847 164,722 285,250
Personnel expenses i5 308,066 157,491 289 491
Others & 621,753 331,250 555,344
P13,449.473 P6,450,573 P11,917.903
15. Selling and Distribution Expenses
Selling and distribution expenses consist of:
For the
Six-Month
For the Period From
Year Ended July 1 to For the Year
December 31 December 31  Ended June 30
Note 2011 2010 2010 -
Distribution P545,051 P265,486 P515,105
Personnel expenses I8 406,305 227,513 415,835
Delivery and freight 327,772 130,115 286,637
Depreciation 917 274,819 141,053 271,359
Rental and utilities 13,25 149,033 67,800 124 876
Othets 5 402,384 206,683 391,138
P2,105,864 P1,058,662 F2.004 950




16. General and Administrative Expenses

(eneral and administrative expenses consist of:

For the

Six-Month

For the Period From
Year Ended July L to For the Year
December 31  December 31  Ended June 30
Note 2011 2010 2010
Personnel expenses 18 P350,168 P194,738 P333,132
Rental and utilities 13, 25 96,011 55,245 100,790
Outzide services 84,875 72,130 118,026
Others 17 147,846 69,732 156,144
Pa78,94) P391 845 P708,002

17. Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization are distributed as follows:

For the

Six-Month

For the Period From
Year Ended July 1 to For the Year
December 31 December 31 Ended June 30
Note 2011 2010 2010
Cost of goods sold U4 P859,746 P455,268 P§41,738
Selling and distribution 15 274,319 141,053 271,359
General and administrative 16 35,648 15,302 34,217
1,170,213 P611,623 - P1,147,314

18. Personnel Expenses

For the

Six-Month

For the Period From
Year Ended July 1 to For the Year
December 31  December 31  Ended June 30
Noie 2011 2010 2010
Salaries and wages P1,014,189 P551,128 PO&4 998

Retirement cost 22 50,850 28,614 53,460

S P1,065,039 P579,742 P1,038,458
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The above amounts are distributed as follows;

For the
Six-Month
- For the Period From
Year Ended July 1 to Fot the Year
December 31 December31  Ended June 20
. Note 2011 2010 2010
Selling and distribution 15 P406,805 P227,513 P415,835
General and administrative 76 350,168 194 738 333,132
Cost of goods sold 14 308,066 157,491 289,491
P1,065,039 P579,742 - P1,038,458
19. Basie/Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS is computed as follows:
For the
Six-Month
For the Period From
Year Ended July 1 to For the Year
December 31 December 31  Ended June 30
2011 2010 2010
Net income (a) P289,047 P129,686 P738,676
Issued shares at begirming of the
period 3,693,772,279  3.693,772,279  3,693,772,279
Weighted average number of
shares outstanding (b) 3,6953,772,279  3,693,772,27%  3,693,772,279
Basic/Diluted EFS (a/b} Po.08 P0.04 P0.20

As at December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and June 30, 2010, the Company has no

dilutive equity instruments.



20. Segment Information

‘As discussed in Note 1, the Company is engaged in the manufacture, sales and
distribution of CSD and NCB. The Company’s main products under ite CSD category
include brands Pepsi-Cola, 7Up, Mountain Dew, Mirinda, and Mug. The NCB brand
category includes Gatorade, Tropicana/Twister, Lipton, Sting energy drink and Propel
fitness water. The Company operates under two (2) reportable operating segments, the
CSD and NCB catcgorics. Analysis of financial information by operating segment is as

follows:
D NCB Combined
For Sixe For the For Six- For the For Sl Fol the
Forthe  Moaoth Pesicd Woar For the  Blunth Period ear Furthe  MMonch Poriod Year
Year Epded  fom July Lo Bnded Year Eaded fomulyite Endet Year Ended ot July 1 w0 Ended
Decembrr 31 Decsobar 31 June30  December 3l Fcumbir 31 Tuna30  Peccmber 31 Becember 33 Tune 30
{in 000G, D00 8) 2011 2010 2010 2011 2010 2010 2011 2010 o
Mt Sakes
Externiel galea M4 07 PF5548  PL3,560 F5,390 P2,647 P5220 F19.961 P98 P&, 78S
Sales discounts and
relug (2,138) (1,011 (2091} {604} _(200) (569) {1.837) {1301 (2,46
Net sales PF11,933 P5,937 Filden 5,196 P2357 PA,550 P17,129 PR294 P16,120
Result .
Segment result* F2,563 FI,719 b4 Fl,116 P524 PLZIT F3,07% F1,543 P4,211
Tnallocated sxpanzon (3271} (1,67%) (3,215
Inwerest aud financing
epences (26} ) (@
Equity in fiet semings
of assaciates {3) i 2
Interest income T a 13
Crther income - mt 9 15 46
Income tax &4 {126} {55} @lﬁl\
Net income FIZ4 F130 P72
Other Tnfoymatlon™
Segment assats 19,524 4,507 PR,327
Iovemtments i
associates 527 531 530
__Other, hopieurrent aciets 148 79 10%
Combined totol aszets 0,192 F9,137 PB,066
Segment Hahilities 3,086 F2,704 P2,620
Ineome tax, payabls - 1 57
Noted payable ke e -
Deferred tax Habilities -
nit 412 367 J9i
. Combloed total
Tabllites 4,255 3,482 3,071
Caplal wmditurau P1,806 P745 FlL,127
Deapreciation and
amortization of
bottles end cases and
ro r, plait and
gqu'{;:’,’,.f 1,170 612 1,147
Momcash itema other
than
fepreciation and
amortization 41 34 %

# Segment reault iz the difforence between net sales and segment xpénses. Segment expenses m: aliorgted hased on the percentige of each reportable segment’s

net sales orer tota] owt aulea,

#%Geoment essets and Babilitles relite to balances as at Decepber 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 gnd June 34, 2410,

There were no intersegment sales recognized between the two reportable segments.

The Company uses its assets and incurs liabilities to produce both CSD and NCB, hence,
the assets and liabilitics are not dircetly attributable to a segment and cannot be allocated
into each segment on a reasonable basis.

Major Customer

The Company does not have any single external customer from which sales revenue
generated amounted to 10% or more of the net sales.



21. Financial Instruments

Financial Risk Management

Overview
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

" Credit Risk
* Liquidity Risk
*  Market Risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks,
the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and mandging risks, and
the Company’s management of capital.

The main purpose of the Company’s dealings in financial instruiments is to fund its
operations and capital expenditures.

Risk Management Framework

The BOD has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework, The BOD has established the Executive
Committee (EXCOM), which is responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company’s risk management policies. The EXCOM identifies all issues affecting the
operations of the Company and reports regularly to the BOD on its activities,

The Company’s risk mahagement policies are established to identify and apalyze the
risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor
risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect chanpges in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The
Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to
develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee performs oversight over financial management and internal
control, specifically in the areas of managing credit, liquidity, market and other risks of
the Company. The Board is assisted in the ovetsight role by the Internal Audit. Internal
Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoe reviews of risk management controls and
procedues, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

There were no changes in the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for managing
the risk and the methods used to measure the risk from previous year.

Credit Risk
Credit risk represents the risk of loss the Company would incur if credit customers and
counterparties fail to perform their contractual obligations. The Company’s credit risk
arises principally from the Company’s trade receivables.

Exposure fo Credit Risk
The carrying amounts of the financial assets represent the Company’s maximum credit
exposure. The maximum exposure 1o credit risk as at Decernber 31 is as follows:

‘ 2011 2010
Cash and cash equivalents . P359,668 P305,686
Receivables - net 1,260,824 1,023,879
Due from related parties 382,359 405,465

Total credit exposure | P2,003,351 P1,735,030




The Plant Credit Committecs have established a credit policy under which each new
customer is analyzed individually for creditworthiness before standard credit terms and
conditions are granted. The Company’s review inclides the requirements of updated
credit application docaments, credit vetifications through confirmation that there are no
credit violations and that the account is not included in the negative list, and analyses of
financial performance to ensure credit capacity. Credit Iimits are established for each
customer, which serve as the maximum open amount at which they are allowed to
purchase on credit, provided that credit terms and conditions are observed.

The credit limit and status of each customer’s account are first checked before processing
a credit transaction. Customers that fail to meet the Company’s conditions in the credit
checking process may transact with the Company only on cash basis.

Most of the Company’s customers have been transacting with the Company for several
years, and losses have occwred from time to time. Customer credit risks are monitored
through annual credit reviews condueted on a per plant basis. Results of oredit reviews
are grouped and summarized according to credit characteristics, such as geographic
location, aging profile and credit violations. Historically, credit violations have been
attributable to bounced checks, denied and absconded credit accounts,

It is the Company’s policy to enter into transactions with a diversity of creditworthy
parties {0 mitigate any significant concentration of credit risk.

Collateral securities are required for credit limit applications that exceed certain
thresholds. The Company has policies for acceptable collateral securitics that may be
presented upon submission of credit applications. Collateral securities include bank
guarantees, time deposits, surety bonds, real estate and/or chattel mortgages. The
aggregate fair market value of these collateral securities amounted to P156 million and
P174 million as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

To pursue timely realization of collateral in an orderly manner, the Company's policy
discourages the acceptance of chattel and real estate collateral. For chattel and real estate
collateral, the Company created rules governing the acceptance of such guarantees. On
instances of customer default, the Company's credit committee with the support of the
Corporate Legal Department is responsible for the foreclosure of collaterals in the form
of real and movable personal properties. Serfes of demand letters are sent to the
defaulting customer to command for paymentand to propose for debt repayment
agreemnents, If the customer fails to cooperate, the case will be endorsed to the Legal
Department to facilitate the foreclosure of the collateral. The Company generally docs
not use non-cash collateral for its own operations.



As at De_ccmber 31, the aging analysis per class of financial assets that were past due but
not impaired s as follows:

December 31,2011

Neither Fast Doe but not Impajred
Fast Dge noxr 1t 30 Mto60 = More than
Impaired Days Days 60 Days Impaired Total
Cash sod cash
equivalents "P359,668 P - | P - - ;
Receivables: ' d T3P o
Trade 756,286 295,440 TEATT 56,855 116,703 1,301,161
Others 30,228 15,822 5,691 4,625 51,690 128,056
Due from relsted parties 376,175 1,776 846 4,062 - 382,859
1542357 313,038 82,414 65,542 168,393 2,171,744
Leys allowance for
impairment losseg - - - - 168,393 168,393
F1,542,357 P313.038 PRE2A14 PoS8.542 F - P2,003,351
December 31, 2010
Neithet Past Due bt not Impaired
Past Due nor 1o 30 3 ta a0 Mors than
Impaired Days Days 60 Days Impairad Total
Cash and cash
cquivalents P303,686 P P - B - P - P305,686
Recgivables:
Trade 676,400 268 200 32,327 - 108,377 1,086,104
Others : 12,151 15,653 3831 14,717 19,412 65,764
Due from related parties 405 465 - - - - 405 465
‘ 1,398,702 284,453 . 36,158 14,717 127,989 1,863,019
Less allowsnce for ‘
___ impaittnent losses - - - - 127,589 127,580
P1,399.702 P284 453 P35,158 P14717 P - P1,735,030

The Company believes that the amounts of financial assets that are neither past due nor
impaired and unimpaired past due are collectible, based on historic payment behavior and
extensive analysis of customers counterparties credit risk,

The Cormpany’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty. There are
no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Company. Cash in banks and cash
cquivalents, trade and other receivables and due fiom related parties are of high grade

quality.
The credit qualities of financial assets are determined as follows;

= Cash in banks and cash equivalents are based on the credit standing or rating of
the counterparty.

* Total recejvables and due from related parties are based on a combination of
credit standing or rating of the counterparty, historical experience and specific
and collective credit risk assessment. High grade quality financial assets are
those assessed as having minimal credit risk, otherwise they are of standard

quality.



Liquidity Risk

Liq}lidity tisk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations ag they fall due. The Company manages liquidity risk by forecasting
projected cash flows ‘and maititaining a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility. Treasury controls and procedures are in place to ensure that sufficient cash is
maintained to cover daily operational and working capital requirements, as well as capital
expenditires and debt service payments. Management closely monitors the Compatiy’s
future and contingent obligations and sets up required cash reserves as necessary in
accordance with internal requirements.

In addition, the Company has the following credit facilities:

* The total commitment as at December 31, 2011 and 2010 under the lige of credit
is P3.129 billion and P2.909 billion, respectively, of which the Company had
drawn P1.225 billion and P625 million, respectively, under letters of credit and
short-term loams. All facilities under the omnibus line bear interest at floating
rates consisting of a margin over current Philippine treasury rates; and

" P670 million and P615 million domestic bills purchased line, Which were
available as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Exposure to Liguidity Risk
The table summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets and
financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted ameunts:

Ag at December 31, 2011

More than
Carrying Contractaal Cne Year One Year to
Amount Cash Flow or Less Five ¥ears
Einancial assets: '
Cash and cash equivalents P359.668 F359,668 . P359,668 |
Receivables - net 1,260,824 1,260,824 1,260,824 -
Due from related parties 382,859 382,859 382,859 -
F2,003,351 2,603,351 P2,003,351 P -
Financial liabilities: :
Notes payable P750,000 F764,187 P764,187 F -
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses * 2,678,679 2,678,679 2,673,679 -
Other noncurrent :
liabilities** 64,265 14,533 - 74,533
P3,492,944 Pr3,517,399 P3,442,866 F74,533

* Excluding statitory payables, acernal for operating leases and ciirrent portion of accrued rebirement cost
*¥ Excluding non-euiment portion of scorued retirement cost



Ag at December 31, 2010

More thay
Carrying Cotitractual One Year One Year to
. Amount Cash Flow or Less Five Years
Financial assets: : ‘
Cash and cash equivalents P305,636 F305,686 305,686 P -
Receivables - net ' 1,023,879 . 1,023,879 1,023,879 -
Due from related parties ‘ 405,465 405 465 405,465 -
F1,735,030 P1,735,030 P1.735,030 P -
Financial liabilitles; ‘
Notes payable P200,000 P201,750 P201,750 P -
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses * 2,496,905 2,496,905 2,496,505 -
Other noncursent
ahilitieg** 70,194 82,548 - 52,548
P2,767,099 P2,781.203 P2,698,655 PB2.548

* Excluding statutory payables, acetual for operating leases and ourrent portion of accrued retirement cost

** Excluding non-current portion of acerued retirement cost,

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur
significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts.

Financial dssets Used for Managing Liquidity Risk

The Company considers. expected cash flows from financial assets in assessing and
managing liquidity risk. To manage its liquidity risk, the Company forecasts cash flows
from operations for the next six-months which will result in additional available cash
resources and enable the Company to meet its expected cash outflow requirernents.

Market Risk - :

Matket risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as commodity prices, foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and other market prices will affect the Company’s income
or the value of its heldings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimizing the return. :

The Company is subject to various market risks, including risks from changes in
commodity prices, interest rates and currency exchange rates.

Exposure to Commodity Prices

The risk from commodity price changes relates to the Company’s ability to recover
higher product costs through price increases to customers, which may be limited due to
the competitive pricing environment that exists in the Philippine beverage market and the
willingness of consumers to purchase the same volume of beverages at higher prices. The
Company is exposed to changes in Philippine sugar prices.

The Company minimizes its exposure to risks in changes in commodity prices by
entering into comtracts with suppliers with duration ranging from six-months to one year;
with fixed volume commitment for the contract duration; and with stipulation for price
adjustments depending on market prices. The Compapy has outstanding purchase
commitment amounting to P3.064 billion as at December 31, 2011. The EXCOM
congidered the exposure to commodity price risk to be insignificant,



Foreign Currency Risk ‘

‘The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on purchases that are denominated in
currencies other than the Philippine peso, mostly in United States (U.5.) dollar and Euro.
In respect of monetary assets and liabilities held in currencies other than the Philippine
peso, the Company ensures that its exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buyving
foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances, The
EXCOM considered the exposure to foreign currency risk to be insignificant. Purther, the

Company does not hold any investment in foreign securities as at Decernber 31, 2011 and
2010. '

Exposure to Interest Rate Risk

The Comparty’s exposure to the risk for changes in market interest rate relates primarily
to its debt obligations with variable interest rates. The Treasury Department, due to ite
competencies in managing debt obligations, transacts with creditors to ensure the most
advantageous terms and to reduce exposure 10 risk of changes in market interest rate.

The Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments are as follows:

‘ 2011 2010
Financial assets (cash equivalents) P60,000 P100,000

Financia] liabilities (750,000) (200,000}
| (P690,000)  (P100,000)

Sensitivity analysis for the variable rate instruments is as follows:

* A 2% increase in interest rates would have decreased equity and profits for the
year ended December 31, 2011 and for. the six-month period from
July 1 to December 31, 2010 by P2 million and P1 million, respectively.

" A 2% decrease in interest rates for the year ended Decemmber 3 1, 2011 and for the
six-month period from July 1 to December 31, 2010 would have had equal but
opposite effect, on the basis that all other variables remain constant,

The interest rate risk’s sensitivity analysis is based on interest rate variance that the
Company considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting date,

Fair Values

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts
due to the short-term nature of these financial instruments and the interest rates that they
carry approximate interest rates for comparable instruments in the market.

The fair value of finance lease liability is estimated as the present value of all future cash
flows discounted using the fixed interest rate. The discount rate used in the present value
of the minimum lease payment is the interest rate implicit in the lease. The reduction on
the finance lease liability is recognized using the effective interest method.

Capital Management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to increase the value of
shareholders’ investment and maintain reasonable growth by applying free cash flow to
sclective investments that would further the Company’s product and geographic
diversification. The Company sets strategies with the objective of establishing a versatile
and resourceful financial management and capital structure,



The Chief Financial Officer has overall responsibility for monitoring of capital in

- proportion to risk. Profiles for capital ratios are set in the light of changes in the
Company’s external environment and the risks tnderlying the Company’s business
operations and industry.

The Company defines capital as total equity shown in the statements of financial
position. .

There were no changes in the. Company’s approach to capital management during the
year and the Company is not subject to externally-imposed capital requirements.

The Company’s bank debt to equity ratio as at reporting dates is as follows:

_ : 2011 2010
Bank debt* P750,000 P200,000
Total equity P5,943.838 P5,654,791

Bank debt to equity ratio ' 0.13:1 0.04:1

* Bank debt comprises notes payable

22. Retirement Flan

The Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering
substantially all of its regular and full time employees. The Company has a Refirement
Comumittee that sets the policies for the plan and has appointed two Philippine banks as
trustees to manage the retirement fand pursuant to the plan. Annual cost is determined
using the projected unit credit method, The Company’s latest actuarial valuation date is
December 31, 2011. The actuatial valuation is made on an annnal basis.

The reconciliation of the assets and Habilities recognized in the statements of financial
position is shown below:

| ‘ 2011 2010
Present value of defined beénefit obligation P586,861 P391,053
Fair value of plan assets ‘ 170,614 155,933
Unfunded obligations 416,247 235,120
Unrecognized net actuarial gains (losses) (175,171) 5,107

Accrued retirement cost P241,076 P240,227

The cutrent portion of accrued retirement cost (included under “Accounts payable and
accrued eXpenses” account in the statements of financial position) amounted to P50
million and P88 miltion as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, while the
noncurrent portion (included under “Other noncurrent lisbilities” account in the
statements of financial position) amounted to P191 million and P152 million as at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. ' \



The components of retirement cost recognized in profit or loss are as follows:

For the

Six-Month

For the Petiod From
Year Ended Julylto  For the Year
December 31 December 31 Ended June 30
2011 2010 2010
Current service cost. P24,747 P14,813 P29,022
Interest cost 31,958 18.635 34,052

Expected retumn on plan assets (5,355) (4.834) (9,614)

Net retiroment cost P50,850 P28,614 P53 460
Actual return on plan assets - PRAT1 P9 420 P2,892

The Company’s retirement cost is allocated between “Cost of Goods S0ld” account in the
staternents of comprehensive income, which amounted to P5 million, P3 million and P5
million for the year ended December 31, 201 1, for the six-month period from
July 1 to December 31, 2010 and for the yvear ended June 30, 2010, respectively, and

““Operating Expenses” account in the statements of comprehensive income which
amounted to P46 million, P26 million and P48 million for the year ended December 3,
2011, for the six-month period from July 1 to December 31, 2010 and for the year ended
June 30, 2010, respectively,

The changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2001 2010
Balance at beginning of period P391,053 P425,943
Interest cost : 31,958 18,635
Current service cost 24,747 14,813
Benefits paid | . (50,850) (68,340)
Actuarial loss on obligation 189,953 -
Balance at end of period P586.,861 P391,053

The movements in the fair value of plan assets are shown below:

—_ : 2011 2010
Balance at beginning of period ' P155,933 P214,844
Expected return 5,855 4,834
Contribution 50,000 -
Benefits paid (50,850) (68,340)
Actuarial gain on plan asgets 9,676 , 4,595
Balance at end of period P170,614 P155,933

Principal actuarial assutnptions used in determining retirement cost at reporting date
(expressed as weighted averages) are as follows:

2011 2010
Discount rate 8.75% 8.75%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 4.50% 4.50%

Rate of future salary increase 5.00% 5.00%




The Company’s plan assets consist of 99% investment in fixed income securities and 1%
investments in shares of stocks as at December 3 1,201t and 2010.

The overall expected return on plan assets is based on the portfolio as a whole and not on
the sum of the returns on individual asset categories. The return is based exclusively on
the historical returns, without adjustments.

The historical information of the amounts is as follows:

December 31 June 30
2011 2010 2010 2005 2008

Present valuc of the defined

benefit obligation P556,862 P391.053 P425.945 P382,590 P333,886
Fair value of plan assats 170,614 155,933 214,844 175,708 195,117
Deficit in the plan 416,248 (235,120) {211,101) (206,882) (138,769}
Experience adjustments on B

plar: [iabilities loss (zain) 73,704 - (20,179) 20,706 (5,603)
Experience adjustments on :

plan assets loss - - (11,721) (11,963) - (11,662)

The Company’s expected contribution to the plan for the year 2012 is P50 million. Any
future contribution to the plan is determined taking into account the cash flow and
financial condition as of the date of intended date of contribution as well as other factors
a3 the Company may consider relevant.

23. Capital Stock

This account consists of*

For the Six-Manth Period
For the Year Ended From July 1 to For the Year Ended
December 31, 2012 December 31,2010 June 30, 2010
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount
Authorized - PO,15 :
par value £.000,000,000 P750,000  5,000.000.000 P750,000  5,000,000,000 F750,000
Issued and outstanding
balance at beginning/
end of year 3,093,772.2'M P334066 3,693.772.279 P354.066 3,693,772279 P534.066

On February 1, 2008, the Company’s initiel public offering of 1,142,348,680 shares at
P3,50 per share culminated with the listing and trading of its shares of stocks under the
First Board of the Philippine Stock Fxchange, Inc. Of the total shares offered,
380,782,893 shares pertain to the primary offering, which resulted in an increase in
capital stock amounting to P57 million and additional paid-in capital of P1.2 billion, net
of P138 million transaction cost that is accounted for as a reduction in equity.

The Company has approximately 643 and 637 holders of common equity securities as at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, based on the number of accounts registered
with the Stock Transfer Agent. The PCD Nominee Corporation (Filipine) and (Non-
Filipino) were considered as two holders.



24, Retained Earnings

The BOD approved several declarations of cash dividends amounting to P369 million for
the six-month period from July 1 to December 31, 2010 and P'554 million for the year
ended June 30, 2010, Details of the declarations are as follows:

Payable to

Dividend Stockholders of
Date of Declaration Per Share Record as at Date of Payment
September 30, 2009 0.15 October 15, 2009 October 29, 2009.
September 9, 2010 0.10 _ September 24, 2010 October §, 2010

The Company has a dividend policy to declare dividends to stockholders of record, which
are paid from unrestricted retained earnings. Any future dividends it pays will be at the
discretion of the BOD afier taking into account the Company’s earmings, cash flow,
financial position, capital and operating progress (see Note 9), and other factors as the
BOD may consider relevant. Subject to the foregoing, the policy is to pay up to 50% of -
the annual net income as dividends.

25, Commitments and Contingencies
a. Leases

*  Operating Lease Commitments as Lessee .

The Company leases certain parcels of land where its bottling plants, warehouses
and facility are located for a period of one to twenty-five years, renewable for
another one to twenty-five years. None of these leases includes contingent
rentals. Rent expense pertaining fo these leased properties amounted to P195
million for the year ended December 31, 2011, P93 million for the six-month
period from July I to December 31, 2010, P179 million for the year ended
June 30, 2010 (see Notes 13, 14, 15 and 16). '

Future minimum lease payments under such noncancelable operating leases are

as follows:

For the

Six-Month

For the Period From
Year Ended July 1to  For the Year
December 31 December 31 Ended June 30
2011 2010 2010
Less than one year = P92.706 P92 497 P64,441
Between one and five years 351,467 318,107 201,375
_More than five years 472,609 292,326 188,186

P916,782 P702,930 P454,002




Finanee Lease Commitments as Lessee

The Company has finance lease agreements covering certain pallets and power
generation facilities in its plants for periods ranging from 5 to 10 years. Future
minipumn lease payments and their present value are as follows: :

2011 2010

Future Present Value Futnre Present Value

Mininum of Minimum Minfmutn of Minimum

Lease Lease Lease Lease

Fayments Interest Fayvments FPayinenis Interest Payments

Less than one year . P41,993 P9.627 P3x366 P14,835 P313 Pl4,522

‘Betwean one and

five years 387,082 130,027 257,655 395,693 137026 258 669
More than five :

years 359,914 K1,I58 278.656 383.078 84,973 298,105

P789,580  P220.912 68,677 P793,608 P222312 P371,.296

The current portion of the obligation under finance lease, which is included
under “Accounts payable and accrued expensés” account in the staterments of
fancial position, amounted to P18 million and P15 million as at December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively, while the noncurrent portion, which is included
under “Other noncurrent Jiabilities” account in the statements of financial
position, amounted to P64 million and P70 million as at December 31, 2011 and
2010, respeciively.

The lease agreement on the power generation facilities has not yet commenced
and the Company is expecting to use the sajd facilities in 2012, thus, no assete
and liabilities have been recognized as at December 31, 2011.

Interest ratos are fixed at the contract date. The average effective interest rate
contracted approximates 6.0% to 6.5% per annum. There were no unguarantced
residual values of assets leased under finance lease agreements as at
December 31, 2011 and 2010. Interest expense related to the obligation under
finance lease amounted to P6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011,
P3 million for the six-month period from July 1 to December 31, 2010, and
P7 million for the vear ended June 30, 2010.

Uperating Lease Commitments as Lessor

The Company subleases one of the Company’s warehouse for a period of fifteen
years renewable for another ten years. Rent income pertaining to these leascd
properties amounted to P2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 and P1
million and for the six-month period from July 1 to December 31, 2010 and for
the year ended June 30, 2010, The said rent income is recognized under “Finance
and Other Income (Expenses)” account in profit or loss.



Future minimum lease revenues under such noncancellable operating leases are

as follows!

For the

Six-Month

For the Period From
Year Ended Julylto  Forthe Year
December 31 December 31 Ended June 30
, , 2011 ‘ 2010 2010
Less than one vear P1,680 P2,297 P1,148
Between one and five years 6,930 574 2,297

More than five years 19,921 - -

P28,531 P2.871 P3,445

b. The Company is'a party to a number of lawsuits and claims relating to labor and
other jssues arising out of the normal course of its business. Management and its
legal counsels believe that the outcome of these lawsuits and elaims will not
materially affect the financial position, financial performance or liquidity of the

Company,

26. Supplementary Information Required by the BIR

In addition to the disclosures mandated under PFRSs, and such other standards and/or
conventions as may be adopted, companics are required by the BIR to provide in the
© notes to the financial statements, certain supplementary information for the taxable year.
The amounts relating to such information may not necessarily be the same with those
amounts disclosed in the financial statements which were prepared in accordance with
PFRSs. Following are the tax information required for the taxable vear ended

Deacembey 31, 2011:
L Based on RR No. 19-2011

A. Sales/Receipts/Fees

Rerular/
. Normal Rate
Sale of goods ‘ P17,128,518

B. Cost of Sales/Services
Regular/

Normal Rate
Cost of goods P13,011,967




C. Non-Operating and Taxable Other Income

A. VAT

Regular/
_Normal Rate
Scrap sales P31,904
Interest income 3,825
Rent income 1,922
Miscellaneous income 72,612
P110,263
D, Itemized Deductions
Regular/
Normal Rate
Personnel expenses P%06,490
Marketing 555,674
Outside services 543,348
Delivery and freight 340,130
Depreciation 310,466
Rental and utilities 262,818
Distribution 159,553
{Others 440,319
P3,518,798
1. Based on RR No. 15-2010
Amount
I. Output VAT P2,012,634
Basis of the Oufput VAT:

Vatable sales 716,929,167
Zero rated sales 207,023

Net deductible discount (157,220)

P16,978,970




Amount

2, Input VAT
Beginning of the year o P -
Current year’s domestic purchases:
a. (roods for resale/manufacture ‘
or further processing 1,250,820
b. Goods other than for resale or
manufacture -
¢. - Capita] goods subject to
_ amortization 37,596
d. Capital goods not subject to
- amortization -
€. Services lodged under cost of
goods sold 325,047
f.  Services lodged under other
-+ accounts -
Claims for tax credit/refund and other
adjustments . -
Balance at the end of the year P1,613,463
3. Customs Duties and Tariff Fees:
Landed cost of imports P1,827,261
Customs duties paid or acerued 67,475
Tariff fees paid or accrued -
P1,894,736
B. Documentary 'Stamp Tax
Amount
On loan instruments P2 851
On others 2,887
P5,738
C. Withholding Taxes
Antount
Creditable withholding taxes P153,819
Tax on compensation and benefits 162,321
Final withholding taxes 2,168
P348,308
D. Al Other Taxes (Local and National)
_ Amount
Other taxes paid during the year recognized under
“Others” account under Cost of Goods Sold and
Operating Expenses :
License and permit fees "P71,144
Real catate taxes 22,280
Others 1,464

P94,888




b ]

E. Deficiency Tax Assessments and Tax Cases

As of December 31, 2011, the Company has no pending tax court cases or has
not received tax assessment notices from the RIR.

Information on amounts of excise taxes tax is not applicable since there are no
transactions that the Company would be subject to these taxes.



My

Pépsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc,

| Km. 29, National Road Tunasan,
SCHEDULE OF RECONCILATION OF RET

Muntinlupa City,

D EARNINGS AVAILABLE
FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011
(Amounts in Theusands)

Unappropriated Retained Eamings, as adjusted t0

available for dividend distribution, beginning
Add: Net income actually earned/realized during the

period

Net income (loss) during the period closed to Retained

Earnings

Less: Non-actual/unrealized income net of tax

Equity in net (income) loss of associate/joint .

venthure

Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net (except

289,047

T

P3,598,073

3,469

those attributable to Cash and Cash Equivalents)

Unrealized actuarjal gain
Fair value adjustments (M2M £ains)

Fair value adjustments of Investment Property

resulting to gain

Adjusttnent due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP —

gain - '

Other unrealized gains or adjustments to the
retained earnings as a result of certain
transactions accounted for under the PFRS

Sub-total

Add: Non-actial Tosses
Deferred tax expense

Depreciation on revaluation increment (after tax)
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP —

loss
Loss on fair value adjustment of investment
property (after tax)

3,469

C 82,121

Sub-total

32,121

Net income actually earned during the period

Add (Less): . .
Dividend declarations during the period

Appropriations of Retsined Earnings during the

period
Reversals of appropriations
Effects of prior period adjustments
Treasury shares o

337,699

TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS, END
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND

' P4,235,772
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i

Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc.
Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
As at December 31, 2011

Standards “Adopted”, “Not adopted” or “Not
applicabla” :

Philippine Financial Repotting Standards (PFRSs)

PFRS 1 Firsttime Adoption of Philippine Financial Not applicable

Reporting Standards ' ' '

PFRS 2 Share-based FPayment Not applicable
LPFRS 3 Business Combinations Not applicable

PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts ' Not applicable

PFRS & Neon-current Assets Held for Saie and Not applicable

Discontinued Operations ‘

PFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mingral Not applicable

Resources. .

PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosuras ‘ Adopted

PFRS 8 Operating Segrments Adopted

Phillppine Accounting Standards (PASs)

PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statemeants Adopted

FPAS 2 Inventories Adopted

FAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows Adopted

PAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Adopted

Accounting Estimates and Errors

PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period Adopted

PAS 11 Constryctlon Contracts Not applicable

PAE 12 Income Taxes Adopted

PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment Adopted

PAS 17 Leases ' ‘ ‘ Adopted

PAS 18 Revenue Adopted

PAS 18 Emplovee Benefits Adopted

FPAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Not applicable

Disclosure of Government Asgistance ‘

FAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Adopted

Exchanpge Rates

PAS 23 Borrowing Costs Adoptad

PAS 24 Related Party Disclosures : Adopted

FAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirament Not applicable

Banefit Plans : ‘ ‘ ‘

PAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Not applicable

Statements -

PAS 28 Investmenis in Associates ‘ Adopted

PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Not applicable

Economies ‘

PAS 31 Interests in Joint Venture ‘ ‘ Not applicabie

PAS 32 Flnancial Instruments: Prasentation _ Adopted

PAS 33 Earnings per Share Adopted

PAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting c Adopted

PAS 36 Impairment of Assets ‘ Adopted

PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Adopted

Contingent Assets

PAZ 38 Intangible Assets ‘ Not applicable

- PAS 39 Financial Instruments; Recognition and Adopted

Measurament

PAS 40 Investrnent Property Not applicable

FAS 41 ﬁgriculture ‘ Noi applicable

. . —— —
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